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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

VISION, MISSION AND PURPOSE

 “To be  recognised and acknowledged 
by our stakeholders nationally and 

internationally as the foremost 
business development institution 

providing financial services”.

To sustainbly provide sound financial services to 
Swazi Entrepreneurs.

To economically empower Swazi entrepreneurs through 
the provision of accessible and sustainable financial services.

VISION

MISSION

PURPOSE
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HIS MAJESTY KING MSWATI III
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THE MINISTER OF FINANCE’S STATEMENT

The Ministry of Finance has observed with great 

interest the consistent growth and strong financial 

strength of FINCORP as manifested in its 

performance over the past years. It is a great pleasure and my 

singular honour to take this opportunity to congratulate the 

Board, Management, Staff and Clients for good performance.  

I must however hasten to encourage all stakeholders to 

always pay particular attention to the explicit developmental 

mandate that the institution is charged with. There is no 

doubt that FINCORP has excelled in achieving its initial set 

goals of empowering Swazi citizens through the provision of 

accessible and sustainable financial services and I challenge 

the organisation  to do even more. 

Jobs creation and reduction of poverty are some of the 

major challenges facing the Kingdom of Swaziland.  

FINCORP is one of the most important organs created by 

His Majesty’s Government to promote an entrepreneurial 

spirit, create jobs and ultimately reduce the level of 

poverty among citizens.  Anecdotal evidence has proved 

that countries that make the development of small and 

medium enterprises their priority turn to have vibrant and 

sustainable economies in the long run.

As a parent Ministry of FINCORP, we are mindful of the 

urgent need to adequately capitalise the organisation in 

order to enable it carry out its mandate.  To this end we are 

exploring various ways and means to secure funding for 

the organisation.  Our ultimate aim is to make sure that the 

organisation provides affordable credit to its clients. 

In conclusion and on behalf of His Majesty’s Government, 

we congratulate FINCORP and all stakeholders for positive 

quantitative and qualitative results for the year. The significant 

impact that the Corporation has made in the SME sector will 

for ever be cherished.

Hon. Majozi Sithole
Minister of Finance

FINCORP is one of the most 
important organs created by His 

Majesty’s Government to promote an 
entrepreneurial spirit, create jobs and 
ultimately reduce the level of poverty 

among citizens.”
“
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TIBIYO TAKANGWANE MANAGING DIRECTOR’S   
STATEMENT

Tibiyo TakaNgwane will forever cherish the vision 

and foresight of His Majesty King Mswati III when 

in 1993 he instructed Tibiyo TakaNgwane to look 

at ways and means of setting up an institution that would 

provide accessible financial services to people at grassroots 

level. In response to the Royal Command,  the formation of 

Swaziland Development Finance Corporation (FINCORP)  

initially known as Enterprise Trust Fund became a reality in 

1995 when Tibiyo TakaNgwane through its Main Committee, 

assembled a powerful team of professionals to set up the 

modus operandi that would meet the people’s expectations 

and circumstances.  Determined to see his vision develop into 

fruition, His Majesty King Mswati III further pioneered the 

procurement of the initial seed capital of E44 Million through 

bilateral relations and funds from Tibiyo TakaNgwane (a 

development organ of the Swazi Nation).   

It is commendable to note that through an effective and 

efficient management of the institution, FINCORP has 

grown from the humble beginnings of the seed capital of 

E44 Million to a balance sheet net-worth of just above E300 

Million.  As shareholders of this fast growing institution we 

are pleased to note the positive impact that it has made in 

developing the small and medium enterprise (SME) sector in 

the country. FINCORP is undoubtedly one of the leading and 

accessible SME financing organisations locally. 

In line with the objectives of Tibiyo TakaNgwane which 

are to complement government in fostering economic 

independence and self sufficiency; increase income in the 

hands of Swazi citizens; and develop rural communities, we  

shall continue to explore ways and means of strengthening 

the institutional capacity of FINCORP in order to ensure a 

meaningful attainment of its goals.

Lastly, my special gratitude goes to the Government of 

Swaziland, Board of Directors, Management and Staff 

for their unrelenting commitment to the success of the 

organisation.

A. T. Dlamini
Managing Director (Tibiyo TakaNgwane)
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It is commendable to note that through an 
effective and efficient management of the 

institution, FINCORP has grown from the 
humble beginnings of the seed capital of  

E44 Million to a balance sheet net-worth 
of E300 Million.

“
”
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
 for the year ended 31 March 2009

Unprecedented in scale and scope, the Swaziland 

Development Finance Corporation Limited 

(Fincorp) has grown to become one of the major 

Development Finance Institutions in Swaziland.  Its giant 

footprint has extended beyond the boarders of Swaziland 

reaching the African continent and the global community at 

large.  This has  among other things been made possible by 

its major prominence in the SADC Development Resource 

Centre, Association of African Development Finance 

Institutions (AADFI), the World Association of Small 

and Medium Enterprises (WASME) and the International 

Council for Small Business (ICSB).  Several SME sector 

studies conducted by independent agencies have pronounced 

FINCORP to be “lender of first choice” to SMEs. 

Clearly such success would not have been realised  had it 

not been the good working relationship that exists among  

all stakeholders. On top of the hierarchy of stakeholders 

is His Majesty King Mswati III who is the sole founder 

of the organisation. I must make special mention of the 

stakeholders namely Swaziland Government and Tibiyo 

Takangwane;  the Board of Directors; Management, Staff and 

last but not least our clients.   

The lessening of Foreign Direct Investment in Swaziland 

coupled with the weakened performance of the local 

economy due to the global financial crisis has re-emphasised 

the importance of focusing on domestic investment 

and in particular the promotion of SMEs. Consequently 

Development Finance Institutions like FINCORP are 

increasingly becoming key to the rejuvenation and 

stabilisation of world economies. The other significance of 

SME’s is, unlike multinational companies, they are unlikely 

to leave the country for greener pastures as a result of changes 

or improvements in other neighbouring economies. It is 

encouraging to note that through Public Private Partnerships 

(PPP) the  nation has come up with various initiatives aimed 

at promoting the development of local SME’s. Such initiatives 

As a new Director and Chairman 
of the institution I would also like to 
thank all the Members of the Board for 
their warm welcome and further look 
forward to their insight as Fincorp 
forges ahead with its mission to provide 
increased access to financial services to 
Swazi Entrepreneurs. 

“

”



SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

include the Entrepreneur of Year Award Competition, the 

Technoserve Business Plan Competition, Business Woman 

of the Year, European Union subsidy scheme, and others. 

OVERVIEW

The global economy will continue to face challenges until the 

effects of the global financial crisis are fully neutralised. For 

sub-Saharan African countries with little access to financial 

markets, there is optimism that the effects of the crisis will 

not be severe.  Most low-income countries were shielded from 

the direct impact of the sudden stop in private capital market 

flows because they have lower access to such flows and this was 

especially true in sub-Saharan Africa.  Nonetheless, the impact 

has found its way to low-income countries through other 

obscure channels.  Countries that rely heavily on commodity 

exports faced sharp decline in revenue. This decline drastically 

reduced government revenue, and direct spending on social 

services. Countries then have to find ways and means of 

compensating for the resultant financial shortfalls which affect 

productive use of funds such as investments in infrastructure 

and other development initiatives.

It is interesting to note that people in rural communities 

have for prolonged periods continued with their business 

activities without necessarily experiencing the direct effects 

of the financial crisis. This is a serious indictment on the 

formal commercial banking institutions to reconsider the 

credit worthiness of the poor people. In essence community 

and village banks were not severely affected by the financial 

crisis as borrowers continued to service their housing and 

other domestic finance without any difficulties. A model of 

such banks is possibly worth researching as they continue to 

function and thrive despite the failure of many of the world’s 

largest and most robust financial institutions.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Interest income for the year under review increased by 16% 

from E56 million to E65 million. This was largely driven by the 

“The Gross income increased by 16% from E56 million to E65 million during 
the year under review. This was largely driven by the increase in the gross 

loan portfolio from E229 milion to E333 million. ”
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Bosch Franchise Business Board Members & Senior Management at a Strategic 
Planning meeting.  

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT - continued
 for the year ended 31 March 2009
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increase in the gross loan portfolio from E329 million to E333 

million. Operating expenses increased by 5% to E20.7 million. 

This is a modest growth and is positively correlated to loan 

portfolio size over the year. Net income after taxes increased 

by 27.3% from E7.6 million to E9.7 million. FINCORP 

has through 13 years of existence continued to maximize 

shareholder value whilst providing an excellent service to 

the otherwise unbanked side of the business spectrum.  We 

continue to roll out innovative and accessible products for 

the unbanked in a bid to increase wealth for this segment of 

the population that is traditionally excluded by mainstream 

financial institutions. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Fincorp fully subscribes to the principles of good corporate 

governance and has in particular inculcated a culture of “open 

door policy” to both internal and external customers. This 

approach has cascaded to all levels of the organisation hence 

Fincorp is renowned for being accessibility by all stakeholders 

in particular the clients. We fully embrace the King Code 

of Corporate Governance and emphasise business ethics, 

transparency, honesty and enterprise wide risk management. 

In an effort to maintain full compliance to good  corporate 

governance both the audit risk and finance committee and 

a remuneration committee are in place and comprise well-

experienced non-executive Directors.  

The Board is conscious of the need to improve the skills 

and knowledge of the members in the area of Corporate 

Governance and as such undertakes to keep abreast with the 

constantly changing landscape of Corporate Governance.  The 

pertinent principles of King Reports will be the backbone of 

the organisation’s Corporate Governance thrust as we go into 

the future.

CONCLUSION

I would therefore like to thank all local and international 

funders  for the assistance rendered to the organisation. 

My Appreciation also goes to the Management and Staff for 

the commitment they display in performing their duties.  It 

still remains our main priority as an institution to bring 

financial services closer to the Swazi people living in rural 

areas and it is our fervent hope that the relevant shareholders 

will assist the organisation in this regard.

As a new Director and Chairman of the institution I would 

also like to convey my sincere gratitude to the Members of 

the Board for their warm welcome and further look forward 

to their insight as Fincorp forges ahead with its mission of 

providing increased access to financial services to Swazi 

Entrepreneurs. 

Musa L. Dlamini
Chairman
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THE MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Introduction

As a financial services provider, we have watched 

with great keenness the manner in which the 

global financial crisis has unfolded and its impact 

on developing economies. The crisis caused panic in financial 

markets and forced investors to take their money out of risky 

and shaky investments to safe home. We have however noted 

with reassurance that despite the global financial turmoil, our 

organisation remained strong as manifested by the decent 

upsurge in profits for the year ended 31 March 2009.   

World economy in crisis

The world economic output dropped from 5.2% in 2007 to 3.4% 

in 2008.  It decelerated further to 0.5% in 2009. The turmoil in 

the United States of America caused by the subprime mortgage 

lending practices developed into a global economic and 

financial crisis. Eventually it pushed the world economy into 

a recession.  Robust monetary policies taken by the advanced 

economies, together with enormous liquidity injections failed 

to avert this crisis.  A number of large financial institutions in 

the United States of America and Europe closed shop, while 

10

I am heavily indebted to FINCORP’s 
staff for their unparalleled dedication 
and hardwork.  The results are there 
for all and sundry to see.  The support 
and guidance that I get from my Board 
of Directors is greatly appreciated.  ”

“

MD, Dr. Vincent Mhlanga, welcoming the former 
Minister of Agriculture, Hon. Mtiti Fakudze, to a 
FINCORP function.

MD, Dr. Vincent Mhlanga, presenting a certificate of debt 
completion to Mangweni Farmers Association Chairman.



SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

11

stock market and commodity prices collapsed, and became 

highly volatile.  Interbank lending in the most developed 

economies came to a virtual standstill.  Industrial firms and 

retail businesses found it impossible to access credit as banks 

became hesitant to extend credit.  The severity of the recession 

is evident as some countries are finding it difficult to avoid the 

temptation to nationalise their ailing banks.  Full recovery of 

the economy is not expected within the next two or three years. 

The South African economy is expected to follow the 

developed economies by decelerating into a much prolonged 

recession.  The major contraction in growth is largely rooted 

in manufacturing and energy sectors.  As expected, the Swazi 

economy moved in tandem to that of South Africa.  The arising 

risk aversion and worries over global recession continued 

to plague most emerging economies and commodity based 

currencies.  Investors are nervous and highly risk averse 

as they struggle to assess the implications and depth of the 

recession.

The impact of the economic meltdown on 
microfinance institutions

It has been acknowledged that microfinance institutions 

have emerged relatively unscathed from the financial crises 

of recent years, compared with other financial institutions.  

The currency crises in Asia, and the banking crises in Latin 

America in the 1990s, demonstrated categorically that financial 

institutions serving the poor generally performed better than 

the mainstream banks, during such crises.  The major reason of 

such a scenario is that, clients and microenterprises financed 

by microfinance institutions are not integrated into local 

banking and currency markets.  Although microfinance still 

has deep shock-resistant roots, it has many links to domestic 

and international financial markets, hence the current 

financial crisis is more likely to infect its institutions.  Many 

microfinance institutions may suffer, and some go bust, but 

the sector has built sound foundations.  A number of strong 

microfinance institutions and the vast untapped market of 

creditworthy clients will ensure that the microfinance sector 

will survive the setbacks brought on by the current financial 

crisis. Anecdotal evidence from different markets suggests that 

as the consequences of the crisis ricochet around the globe, 

microfinance institutions will be impacted in very different 

ways, like credit crunch, currency dislocations, job losses, and 

falling demand.  The effect of this phenomenon will depend 

on the structure of the institution’s liabilities, its financial state, 

and more importantly the economic health of its clients.

Financial performance

The net profit increased by 44.1% from E10.1 Million E14.7. 

Million.  Costs containment played a much bigger role in 

improving the organisation’s performance. We are stringent 

and prudent when it comes to providing for doubtful loans, as 

most of these advances are collateral free – as per our lending 

policy.   This provision figure works out to be 3% of the gross 

loan portfolio compared to 4% last year.

Loans totalling E492.0 Million were approved during the year, 

bringing the cumulative approvals to more than E1.0 Billion.

Vote of thanks

I am heavily indebted to FINCORP’s staff for their unparallel 

dedication and hard work.  The results are there for all and 

sundry to see.  The support and guidance that I get from my 

Board of Directors is greatly appreciated.  I wish to convey my 

humble thanks and gratitude to the Minister of Finance and 

his staff for their unwavering support.  Lastly, I wish to record 

my appreciation to FINCORP’s clients for their hard work.

Dr Vincent M. Mhlanga 
Managing Director
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TRACING FINCORP’S  RAPID TRANSFORMATION 
AND  ITS  FUTURE STRATEGIC DIRECTION 

Introduction 

Despite the complex and unrelenting pressures 

associated with microfinance, the Swaziland 

Develop-ment Finance Corporation 

(FINCORP) initially known as the Enterprise Trust 

Fund   has over the years shown great ability to adapt 

to the needs of the market by modifying its operational 

mode and policies from time to time. Leading experts 

in organisational behaviour suggest that the hallmark 

of successful organisations are those that easily adapt 

to rapidly changing market conditions.  Continuous 

innovation and change is said to be directly correlated 

to growth and stability. Conversely, organisations that 

neither innovate or easily adapt to change face being 

crowded out of the market. 

Formative Years

FINCORP, was launched in November 1995 with the 

primary objective of providing access to credit and business 

development services to Swazi entrepreneurs.  The Enterprise 

Trust Fund (ETF) was a wholesale lending institution with the 

sole objective of supporting Small and Medium Enterprises. 

This was against the background of  a population with a very 

low drive for entrepreneurship due to inadequate support 

structures. The chief aim was to create jobs and eradicate 

poverty particularly among the rural folks, women and the 

youth. At inception the organisation only offered wholesale 

lending to reputable financial intermediaries.

Soon after discovering that the number of credible financial 

intermediaries in the country was too low, FINCORP  

modified the qualification criteria in order to accommodate 

newly formed intermediaries in the form of associations.  

This change in policy was accompanied by the introduction 

of a capacity building intervention wherein the newly formed 

and weak associations  were provided with training in credit 

management and governance of financial intermediaries.  It 

became condition precedent for the office bearers of  new 

Deputy MD, Mr. Dumisani Msibi, with a delegation from Bank 
of Arab and Economic Development at FINCORP’s offices

Cane haulage business

Anecdotal evidence will show that 
the transformation and adaptation 
to the new organisation by all 
structures was achieved within an 
exceptional record time period. 
The organisation soon thereafter 
experienced phenomenal organic 
growth far exceeding expectations.  ”

“
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financial intermediaries to go through the capacity building 

training programme.  In addition FINCORP assisted in 

the setting up of offices by way of providing grant funds for 

the acquisition of office equipment such as computers and 

furniture.

By 2002 the Fund had advanced 120 loans to Financial 

Institutions, Commercial Banks; other Business formations 

namely associations; wherein the total portfolio stood at 

E54 million.  However the modus operandi exhibited major 

challenges and outreach limitations.  Some of the challenges 

were as follows:

- Acute shortage of financial retailers to lend to;

- Group lending methodology was limiting portfolio 

growth;

-  Poor performance of groups/associations was adversely 

affecting the quality of ETF’s loan portfolio; and

- The institutional structure as a Trust Fund limited ETF’s 

ability to mobilise funding for operations and growth.

Transformation
As a consequence of these identified challenges the leadership 

of the organisation  commissioned a market research to 

ascertain the relevance and suitability of the modus operandi.  

The results of the research promulgated an unavoidable 

change to retail lending as opposed to wholesale lending. 

Consequently ETF was transformed into a private corporation, 

now known as FINCORP, with a commercial operational 

design engendered on sustainability and profitability. The key 

result for the transformation was the change of mandate from 

wholesale lending to retail lending. 

Immediately thereafter and inline with the transformation of 

the institution, the management of FINCORP  focused on very 

important aspects  such as;

- Strengthening capacity in management at all levels;

-  Staff recruitment, training and reorientation of old staff;

-  Product development; 

-  Re-designing the lending methodology and associated  

 support;

-  Establishing branch network; 

-  Keeping a low default rate, and

-  Keeping costs under control.

Consolidation of Growth
The FINCORP management then commissioned a five Year 

Business Plan that set a new vision;  mission; and statement 

of purpose for the organisation. The document  which was 

collectively crafted by the Shareholders, Board, Management 

and staff of the organisation  demonstrated how and what steps 

were necessary for FINCORP to successfully transform the 

old structure into a new institution. The Business Plan showed 

clear objectives and annual operational targets to guide its 

implementation. Six critical conclusions on financial viability of 

FINCORP were identified in the Business Plan were as follows:

- FINCORP showed  strong potential for maintaining  

 its profitability into the future;

- The default rate was seen as one of the most important  

 variables that needed to be managed effectively;

- Optimum market penetration and utilization of  

 the new infrastructure was expected to be achieved  

 in financial years leading up to 2010 with initial  

 return on equity of 5.6%.  Financial analysis also  

 indicated that financial sufficiency had been attained. 

- The historical positive profit margins would subsist  

 for the foreseeable future.  
Automobile repairs and towing service  business 
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- The implementation of the branch network was  

considered important for the achievement of the projected 

portfolio growth despite its potential negative impact on 

profitability of the organisation.

-  Sugar cane loans remained one of the most important 

elements of the loan portfolio over the medium-term. 

Anecdotal evidence will show that the transformation and 

adaptation to the new organisation by all structures was 

achieved within an exceptional record time period. The 

organisation soon thereafter experienced phenomenal 

organic growth far exceeding expectations.  The loan portfolio 

grew by over 100% in one year.  Staff numbers also increased 

by over 150%.  This was a clear manifestation of a growing and 

learning organisation reaping the fruits of being innovative, 

dynamic and versatility of its Board, management and Staff. 

The rest is history as the institution and its brand have been 

elevated into unprecedented levels in the financial services 

sector in Swaziland .

Organisational Structure 
FINCORP presently operates from one office in Mbabane, 

the capital city of Swaziland. The institution is controlled by 

a Board of eight Directors, of whom five are appointed by 

Government and three by Tibiyo TakaNgwane. All Directors 

are appointed for a period not exceeding three (3) years.

FINCORP is divided into four main strategic business units; 

- Agricultural Credit Department; 

- General Business Credit Department;

- Finance & Administration.

- Legal Affairs Department.

There is no branch network at present but it is in plans of the 

organisation to decentralise operations by at least opening one 

branch in each of the four districts of Swaziland.  A branch 

network would undoubtedly improve FINCORP’s outreach 

to which is critical for the day to day support of the clientele 

though it comes at a considerable cost.  

The current organisational structure has 41 positions with 

four departmental managers and four positions at Middle 

Management level referred to as Senior Officers. There are 

plans to increase the Senior Credit Officer positions to five 

in order to streamline the operations departments namely 

Agricultural Credit and General Business Credit. A move 

to introduce an  Intensive Care Unit otherwise known as a 

“Work Out Unit”  specifically for the management of difficult 

loans, is on the cards.

Loans are tracked as per the four regions of Swaziland, 

Hhohho, Manzini, Lubombo and Shiselweni and also in terms 

of sectoral distribution as shown in financial statements. The 

organisation has achieved decent profits since inception 

despite the volatile operating environment. To this end 

cumulative disbursements exceeding SZL 1 Billion have been 

processed to over 50 000 clients. Below is a table showing 

cumulative loan approvals per region as at the end of the 

financial year:

International Recognition
FINCORP’s performance has been acknowledged nationally 

and internationally by number of professional bodies and 

high ranking individuals.  In 2002, the World Association of 

Small and Medium Enterprises (WASME) awarded a prize of 

excellence to the Managing Director, Dr. Vincent Mhlanga. 

In 2004  FINCORP was honoured with the Euro Market 

Research Centre Award of Excellence and again in 2005 the 

Euro Market Research Centre honoured the organisation 

for its outstanding contribution to enterprise  development.  

Meanwhile the Managing Director, Dr. Vincent Mhlanga who 

has been at the helm of the organisation since its inception 

was decorated by His Majesty King Mswati III with the 

Order of the Swazi Crown Medal for his contribution to the 

Hhohho Manzini Lubombo Shiselweni Total
E E E E E

365,763 285,239 234,652 126,982 1,012,626
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development of the country.  A network of SADC Development 

Finance Institutions honoured the Managing Director with the 

position of being Chairman for the entire SADC DFIs.

FINCORP continues to uphold its highest aspiration, which 

is, “To be recognised and acknowledged by our stakeholders 

nationally and internationally as the foremost business 

development  institution providing financial services”  The 

organisation also continues to be guided by its statement 

of purpose, which is, “To economically empower Swazi 

Entrepreneurs through the provision of accessible and sustainable 

financial services.”

The Birth of a Subsidiary Company
The growth of the institution has been taken to another level by 

the promulgation of the formation of a subsidiary company to 

be known as First Finance Company (FIRST). After a careful 

analysis of the nature of microlending and entrepreneurial 

lending it was found to be necessary  to separate microlending 

from the development finance agenda being pursued by 

FINCORP in order to provide clarity on its mandate. This 

subsidiary will provide general purpose finance to the Swazi 

populace. It seeks to present clients  with an ethical, transparent 

and prudent lending institution that will guard against the 

over-indebtedness of  borrowers. 

The formation of  a subsidiary under FINCORP was 

conceived at a Strategic Planning Session held in November 

2005 attended by the Board, Executive Management and 

Middle Management of the organisation.  It was agreed that,  

what had began as a small window to provide small general 

purpose loans to FINCORP business clients had organically 

grown to become a major product offering for the organisation 

underpinned by phenomenal demand and high transaction 

turnover. It was observed that the huge influx of clients seeking 

general purpose loans as opposed to business loans had a 

potential to undermine the core business of the organisation 

namely development finance. Moreover some members of the 

general public already perceived FINCORP to have deviated 

from its founding mandate. 

The subsidiary will offer a wide range of microloans products 

which will include general purpose loans, short term loans, 

emergency loans, education loans and debt consolidation.   

FIRST will differentiate itself from the rest of the microlenders 

in Swaziland by exercising due care not to over commit 

borrowers and in addition offer debt counseling and onsite 

personal cashflow management training to  its loanees.  

Conclusion 
As an organisation with a legacy of  dynamism and willingness 

to adapt to the global economic changes, FINCORP will 

continue to explore ways and means of making a meaningful 

impact in empowering aspiring entrepreneurs. In the medium 

to long term the organisation aims at transforming itself into 

broad based development finance institution offering a wide 

rage of financial services under one roof.  Building upon 

the successes and lessons learnt to date, nothing can stop 

FINCORP from evolving into a world class financial services 

provider.  

Airport luggage wrapping business
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THE SIGNIFICANCE OF OUR CLIENTS

 

Swaziland Development Finance Corporation 

(FINCORP) was born out of the need to create a 

financial system that is more inclusive so as to allow 

the poor an opportunity to participate in the mainstream 

economic activities.  Over time this would result in the 

reduction of the prevailing poverty rate.

The success or failure of any undertaking is normally closely 

correlated to the extent to which all affected stakeholders play 

their intended roles, hence the need to look at the impact of 

FINCORP’s major stakeholders.

 

The identification and analysis of key stakeholders is a 

process commonly undertaken during the planning stages of 

a project in order to ensure their participation. However it 

is as important to conduct this process during the life of any 

organisation.

The following are the key stakeholders of FINCORP:-

1. Shareholders

2. Our clients (borrowers)

3. The employees

4. Loan capital stockholders

In this article discussions will be limited to the most 

significant stakeholder, the client. Clients are important as the 

organization’s resources are entrusted on them to pursue their 

business interest as per the dictates of their business proposal. 

Whilst it is appreciated that proposals differ in size and 

complexity, every business, however informal, needs a 

roadmap which guides its operations throughout its lifetime. 

This roadmap needs to cover basics such as a vision and 

mission, the target market, marketing plan, an investment 

and growth plan, standards and procedures and the actual 

monitoring of progress. 

In working with Small and Medium Entrepreneurs we have 

realized the following deficiencies which affect their ability to 

attain their growth potential.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

The level of adherence in planning the management team at 

inception of the project could either make or break a project. 

Most plans submitted by clients fail to ensure the project has 

all the required complimentary skills to make the project a 

success. In some instances the plans are well laid out but once 

the loan is approved they are quickly put aside and forgotten 

Blockmaking busisness Wood City franchise business
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only to be remembered once a crisis is encountered. inception 

of the project could either make or break a project. Most 

plans submitted by clients fail to ensure the project has all the 

required complimentary skills to make the project a success. 

In some instances the plans are well laid out but once the loan 

is approved they are quickly put aside and forgotten only to be 

remembered once a crisis is encountered. 

A critical process which is hardly done is the actual marketing 

of the product or service. Marketing is mis-understood and 

perceived as being too expensive and a waste of money.

Part of this problem is caused  by the individualistic nature 

of most SME’s. They do not believe in working in teams and 

fear that a good idea will be stolen and utilized elsewhere by 

competitors. Others simply lack a vision and would rather 

adopt selfish tendencies, hence remain dwarfed with no hope 

for growth.

Our SME’s need to realize the benefits of synergy which 

could be attained by working together in the management of 

business, or the benefits of synergy arising by creating alliances 

with other companies/individuals. 

USE OF BUSINESS MODELS

Despite the fact that Swaziland boasts of a highly educated 

population, application of business models learnt in graduate 

schools by entrepreneurs is very limited. Examples of such 

models include the Ansoffs model, PEST, SWOT analysis and 

many others.

By applying the Ansoffs model entrepreneurs can undertake 

an assessment of where the existing product offering currently 

stands in relation to the market, whilst always keeping in mind 

the need to advance the interests of existing customers first. 

This then leads to decisions on whether or not to:-

• Penetrate the existing market with the existing product

o A common practice in implementing market 

penetration is a pricing strategy. Where it is believed 

the demand for a product is price elastic or price 

sensitive, a reduction in price should increase 

volumes sold and market share and therefore lower 

costs per unit. This should result in increased 

profitability. Important consideration is availability 

of spare production capacity and the response by 

competitors which can nullify the advantage of 

reduced prices.  A motor vehicles spares shop can 

implement a pricing strategy by sourcing spare parts 

from cheaper suppliers and passing on the benefits 

to its customer who will prefer the cheaper product 

as long as the service is reliable and the product is of 

good quality.

• Develop new markets with existing product

• Develop new products in existing markets, or

• Diversify by going into new markets with new products

With respect to PEST, a review of Political, Economic, Social 

and Technological factors can enable a business to react timely 

to changes in its operational environment. Many opportunities 

are missed and by the same breath great advances can be 

made by competitors to the detriment of a local entrepreneurs 

business. 

Recent Political and Economic developments in Swaziland 

which could result in opportunities for Swazi Entrepreneurs 

include the following:-

• The Sikhuphe Airport Development Project

o Opportunities should avail themselves in the Tourism, 

Construction and Service industries for all those 

interested in venturing into business.

• The new LUSIP Dam Project

o Opportunities in Agriculture, Services and Tourism are 

available.

• The planned privatisation of Public Enterprises 
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• The opportunities created by bringing up to 30 percent of  

 Swazi pension funds back to the country.

o This should facilitate easier access to capital funds for 

implementing viable projects in the country.

• The Central Bank of Swaziland’s initiative of    

 establishment of Foreign Exchange Bureaus independent  

 of commercial banks.

These are just a few examples of ongoing projects or changes 

in policy from which great benefits can be derived by an 

Entrepreneur who uses the PEST analysis. Even the current 

global financial crisis which has impacted us to a degree could 

present opportunities to an SME given the substantial decrease 

in property values caused by the decline in demand.

The SWOT Analysis despite being the most widely known 

business tool is not effectively used. Business owners do not 

make full use of their strengths, such that they stand the risk of 

having no strength should a competitor come in with similar 

if not better strengths. Innovation is strikingly lacking. This is 

excercabated by the lack of interest in creating alliances with 

foreign partners who may have access to more sophisticated 

industry expertise and tools. 

Local Entrepreneurs need to be encouraged to apply business 

models or alternatively seek the assistance of local consultants 

to assist with implementation of the business ventures.

TRAINING

In order to increase shareholder value through increased 

profits, it is important for SMEs to invest in the continuous 

capacity building of its staff. This serves to improve quality, 

performance and enhance customer satisfaction. If designed 

appropriately, training also serves as a source of pride and 

recognition of the talent of those assigned the responsibility 

to train their peers. This applies in the case of internal or  

on-the-job training. 

USE OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES

This is probably the first lesson any accounting student is 

taught, the fact that business transactions are different from 

the owners or promoters own personal dealings. This, however 

remains the most challenging problem for most SME’s who 

struggle to make the transition. 

The challenge that FINCORP faces is enormous if one 

considers the expectation of some stakeholders that FINCORP 

should lend money to people who have never at any stage of 

their lives had the experience of controlling a substantial 

amounts of money. 

It is for that reason that the Board, Management and Staff has 

to be commended for managing to attain profits over the years. 

Textile business Food processing and packaging business
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INTRODUCTION

Agribusiness is the largest and most important 

industry in the world. It accounts for 50% of global 

economic output, 60% of global employment and 

70% of all land and water usage. Agribusiness has been the 

foundation of society since the end of the Stone Age, and still 

today is the key driver of socioeconomic development in many 

countries.

FINCORP is one of the leading financial institutions financing 

agricultural business activities in the Country. Agri-business 

has its deep cultural roots among Swazi citizens and has over 

the years evolved to be the backbone of the country’s economic 

growth and major foreign exchange earner. Economic 

development in Swaziland continues to be largely dependant 

on agriculture. Swaziland has generally good soils for 

farming and the country enjoys multiple climatic conditions 

throughout the year. Whilst most financial institutions are not 

so much keen to finance rural farmers because they do not hold 

legal title to the land and use consider risky, FINCORP has 

differentiated itself by using that as a comparative advantage. 

After all, the organization was founded on the principles of 

promoting non-collateralized lending.

FINCORP has financed a host of agricultural projects which 

include sugar cane, sugar cane haulage, sugar cane loading, 

livestock farming, honey bee farming, crops, conventional  

vegetables and other highly valued crops like baby vegetables. 

As at the end of the financial year 48.5 % of the total portfolio 

represents agri-business loans.

Financing Model

Historically the institution had a high exposure to one 

farming activity, namely sugar cane production. In the mid 

to late nineties, sugar cane farming represented more than 

seventy percent (70%) of the total loan portfolio. Of course 

the performance and investment returns of the sector were 

quite attractive. As the years went by, the so called Swazi Gold 

faced serious price reduction and costs escalation challenges 

prompting the organization to look for other equally 

sustainable and high value agricultural production activities. 

One such major high value farming activity that came into the 

picture was baby vegetables. 

Livestock farming has also been on the rise during the past 

financial year. The livestock projects currently financed include 

piggery, beef, dairy and poultry. To this end and in an effort 

to strengthen the viability of livestock farming, in particular 

beef and diary production, a memorandum of understanding 

was concluded with both Swaziland Meat industries and the 

Swaziland Dairy Board. This was to ensure that the farmers 

had stable markets to sell their produce. Empirical evidence 

has shown that agri-business is likely to succeed where there 

Maize bumper harvest Poultry business

OPERATIONS – AGRICULTURAL FINANCE
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is a commercial market for large quantities in place. Of course 

this will only happen where the other critical ingredients to 

make a farm operation successful are in place. The sugar cane 

financing model structures and logistics of sugar cane farming 

are one such perfect example.

It is against this background that FINCORP has made concerted 

efforts to secure strategic alliances with major marketing 

agencies NAMBOARD, National Maize Corporation and 

Swaziland Meat Industries and will continue looking for other 

similar smart partnerships.

THE SUGAR CANE INDUSTRY

Introduction

FINCORP is one of the main sugar cane financing 

institutions in Swaziland, especially among small holder-

farmers. FINCORP has clients in Middle Veld (Malkerns and 

Sidvokodvo), Lowveld (Siphofaneni- Lavumisa) and Hhohho 

district. The millers are Royal Swaziland Sugar Corporation 

RSSC and Illovo. 

The sugar industry is central to the economy of Swaziland, 

accounting for 51% of agricultural output, 35% of agricultural 

wage and about 24% of national GDP. With Swaziland facing 

high levels of poverty and unemployment, the sector can make 

a meaningful contribution to alleviate these problems. 

Challenges

Against the backdrop of currency instability, the industry 

has in recent times been faced with an array of economic 

challenges. The dynamics of the major preferential export 

market, the European Union (EU), changed dramatically. The 

EU introduced price reforms which resulted in a drop in the 

EU price thus depleting the returns for the farmers.

Implication for Swaziland

For financiers like FINCORP, declining earnings have 

increased pressure for the renegotiation of the financial 

packages extended to smallholder sugarcane growers. It has 

also brought fears about the ability of smallholder growers to 

repay their loans; hence the decisions of either to stop extending 

loans to new sugar projects or radically revising the terms of 

sugar sector loans. That risk has now been mitigated by the 

fact that EU is considering to give a grant of 70% of all the 

production costs from bush clearing to cutting. The financiers 

will only finance the remaining 30%. This has made it more 

attractive for most financiers. This has seen the entrance of 

some commercial banks in the financing of this sector.

 For the farmers to stay more competitive even after receiving 

the subsidy of 70% the basic strategy is to continue to improve 

yields both in tonnage and sucrose content per hectare at an 

optimal cost. Clearly the energy costs and haulage costs also 

impact adversely on production efficiency.

Baby vegetable farming business Maize milling business 
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THE LEGAL AFFAIRS DEPARTMENT

INTRODUCTION

The Legal Affairs department was established three 

years ago with the main of   internalizing the legal 

support of the organization which was entirely 

domiciled with external law firms. Since the establishment of 

the department certain milestones have been achieved and 

they include the successful streamlining of working relations 

with external attorneys, efficiency in referral of legal cases, 

constant follow ups and timely conclusion of legal matters.

This department is manned by the Manager Legal Affairs, 

Miss. Lomalangeni Kunene, and the Recoveries Officer, Mr. 

Meshack Shabangu.

FUNCTIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT

The key responsibilities of the department are the following:

• Legal support to various strategic units of the organisation;

• Recovery of repayments of non performing loans.

The organisation is well known for its accessibility to people 

at grassroots level however in turn we expect our clients to 

live up to their obligations of repaying their loans without 

fail. In the event of unexplained default,  we do not hesitate to 

institute legal action.

It is in light of the foregoing that our clients at the loan 

initiation stage are advised to read and understand all legal 

supporting documents before endorsing their signatures. We 

have encountered challenges with clients who sign documents 

and upon default turn around to deny knowledge of same. 

This results in unnecessary legal wrangles between clients and 

the organisation.

THE RECOVERY MECHANISM

The recovery mechanism is designed such that the respective 

departments of the organisation have credit officers who  

in turn manage individual loan portfolios. Their task is to 

monitor each individual account  and make it a point that the 

portfolio remains in good standing at all material times. In 

the event that the officer has explored all possible endevours 

to achieve same and fails, it is at this stage that the supervisor 

and the respective Managers endorse that the non performing 

account be handed over to the legal department.

As amplified above, legal action is the last resort. Where 

proactive and cooperative clients report problems encountered 

well in advance, alternative mutual solutions are considered.

  

The chief mandate of the organisation is to finance Swazi 

entrepreneurs to enable them to start their own businesses. 

As a result we always try to find solutions for any difficulties 

encountered by clients. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS MATTERS

In the year under review there were two industrial relations 

matters that were handled by the legal department and one is 

still pending whilst the other one has been finalised.

CONCLUSION

Going  forward the legal department will seek to strengthen 

the risk management practices of the organisation in order 

to maximise loan repayments and also review all legal 

documentation to ensure full compliance. 

 

We may be faced with challenges from time to time but overall 

we are happy with our recovery rate. Those that deliberately 

refuse to repay their loans will be pursued until they honour 

their obligations. 
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Human Resource Management 
The staff compliment currently stands at forty  (40). One 

employee left the organisation during the year  and two recruits 

joined the organisation during the year. 

Staff development is key to the efficient operation of the 

corporation, we continue to train staff members on salient 

aspects of the operations of the organisation. A number of staff 

members attended training courses locally and outside the 

country as follows:

THE LEGAL AFFAIRS DEPARTMENT  - continued

STAFF MEMBER COURSE Host Country /City 

Bhembe Christopher SME’s Management & Development Programme Israel

Dlamini Balindile Receptionist & Switchboard Operators South Africa

Dlamini Bongile Accounts Assistants Skills South Africa

Hadebe Mlungisi African Agricultural Trade Promotion South Africa

Risk Management Expert Meeting South Africa

Khumalo Velibanti IAS & IFRS Update South Africa

Kunene Lomalangeni Seminar in Managing of In-house Legal department Uganda

Lukhele Clinton Investment Appraisal South Africa

Matse Zwakele Boulder MicroFinance Programme Italy
Thokozani Mavimbela Boulder MicroFinance Programme Italy

Mkhwamubi Sipho Project Finance South Africa

Msibi Dumsani Singapore 3rd Country Training Programme Singapore

African Rural & Agricultural Credit Association Tanzania

Khumalo Nokwazi IAS Seminar South Africa

Ntshalintshali Siko African Business Leaders’ Forum United Kingdom

Nxumalo Bhekumusa Institute for Strategies of Peace & development Israel

Phakathi Bonginkhosi NCR Training South Africa

Simelane Justice Prudential Stds, Guidelines & Rating System for African  
Development Banks

Ivory Coast

Operational Risk South Africa

Investment Appraisal South Africa

IAS & IFRS Update South Africa

Shiba Thobile Customer care South Africa

Mngometulu Qondile Customer care
Thwala Innocent Business Continuity Management, IT Strategy based on COBIT South Africa

Dlamini Titus Investment Appraisal & Risk Analysis South Africa

Simelane Busi  Investment Appraisal & Risk Analysis South Africa
Microfinance issues: Tools of trade African development  
practitioners

Ghana

Sustainable Financing of SME’s Zambia

Mazibuko Manqoba  Microfinance issues: Tools of trade african development  
practitioners

Ghana
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

INTRODUCTION

FINCORP has been engaged in several corporate 

social responsibility initiatives in order to 

contribute positively to the communities in which 

the organisation operates. The main guiding principle 

is to align FINCORP with community activities that 

foster entrepreneurial thinking, empowerment, and self  

emancipation from the  vicious claws of poverty. The 

organization is cognisant of the fact that Corporate Social 

Responsibility broadly represents the integrity with which  

a company governs itself, fulfils its mission, lives by its 

values, engages with its stakeholders and finally measures its 

impact on core activities.  Clearly by its nature, Corporate 

Socially Responsibility can never be said to be enough but 

what is important is to make a meaningful difference in the 

communities in which a company does business.

In spearheading the organisations corporate social 

responsibility initiatives, adherence to the principle of ‘charity 

begins at home” was put at he forefront. The organisation 

has made concerted efforts to present its employees with 

a pleasant and desirable workplace.  Manifestation to this 

assertion is the high levels of motivation among employees 

and the less than one per cent staff turnover.  Among other 

issues that the organisation has made a priority in terms of 

staff welfare is a high benefit comprehensive medical aid 

cover, disability insurance cover and exciting opportunities for 

career advancement.  Employees have been afforded attractive 

opportunities for immovable property acquisition and other 

personal assets. These initiatives have served to be an effective 

launch pad for the organisation’s internal customers to fully 

embrace the Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives. Some 

of the initiatives are as follows:

Presentation of a bakkie by Minister of Finance, Honourable Majozi Sithole and the Managing 
Director, Dr. Vincent Mhlanga to Mangweni Farmers Association for paying off a multi-million debt
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Sponsorship of  Entrepreneurship Program at the 
University of Swaziland – E60 000
The organisation committed an annual donation of E60 000.00  

to UNISWA FOUNDATION for the faculty of commerce 

Entrepreneurship Award. The award is presented to the best 

Entrepreneurship Student during the annual graduation 

ceremony and is also to buy essential books covering the 

entrepreneurship subject at large. 

Employment opportunities for graduates are increasingly 

becoming scarce hence the need to incorporate training 

in entrepreneurship in the tertiary education curriculum. 

Through our corporate social responsibility initiatives, we have 

sought to be the catalyst in this regard through the annual 

sponsorship.

 

Sponsorship of the First Business Place in 
Swaziland - E35 000
An sponsorship of E35 000.00 for the Business Place which is 

a business development service provider to rural communities 

in the Lubombo region. This centre primarily helps farmers set 

up sustainable enterprises by adhering to best farming practices 

and business management principles. The Business Place was 

pioneered by Technoserve Swaziland in an effort to unlock the 

immense business opportunities that will be brought about by 

the construction of the Lower Usuthu Dam in the Lubombo 

region.

The centre offers a catalogue of business development services 

and access to the internet. Fincorp has also been offered an 

opportunity to meet existing and potential clients at the centre.     

Donation to Emseni Wenkhosi Primary School – 
E20 000
A primary school being constructed by the members of the 

Nkhaba community through the assistance of the Mater 

Dolorosa Catholic Mission based in Mbabane received a 

donation of E20 000.00 from Fincorp.  The amount was used to 

complete the construction of two classrooms by purchasing the 

requisite roofing material.

Emseni Wenkhosi Primary is a new school that serves the 

people of Jubukweni Community who previously had their 

children travelling on foot for over ten kilometers to get to the 

nearest primary school.  

Donation to the Dvokolwako Community for the 
Water Supply Rehabilitation initiative – E10 000
A sum of E10 000.00 was donated to the Dvokolwako 

Community to rehabilitate their dilapidated rural water supply 

system which had been rendered non operational for some 

time due to a major breakdown thus depriving the community 

access to clean water.   The donation from the organisation was 

used to pay for the professional services of  reconditioning and 

repairing of the water pump.  

Emseni Wenkhosi Primary School SMEs attending The Business Place meeting

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES - continued
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INTEGRATING SUSTAINABILITY ASPECTS IN OUR 
INVESTMENT PROCESS

Background

Many a times, when a financial institution 

wants to consider a project for funding, the 

aspect that is mostly looked at is the financial 

bottom line. Much as it is important to look at whether or 

not the business will make money and be able to service its 

debt obligations, it is essential to look at the non-financial 

sustainability aspects as well.  This creates shareholder value 

by balancing the interests of all stakeholders and eventually 

promotes sustainable development finance. These aspects 

include social, labour, environmental and health and safety 

issues. These may in some instances, affect the company’s 

sustainability and the bottom line negatively, if not taken care 

of. It is true that incorporating these social issues is expensive, 

especially for a new business.  It is therefore, important to 

motivate the client to gradually introduce them into the 

business despite budgeting constraints. This will enable the 

business to achieve a triple bottom line namely profits, people 

and planet (economic, social and environment).

Some social and environmental issues tend to be very complex, 

necessitating the involvement of specialists. However, it is 

important that an investment officer has an idea of the ideal 

situation in order to identify red flags /issues of concern and 

communicate with the client early enough in the process.  For 

a smooth integration of these sustainability aspects into our 

investment process, the following stages are recommended by 

Norsad, one of our funders.

Intervention Levels
Sustainability Governance starts with the formulation of 

a vision / mission statement that  addresses social and 

environmental impacts.

Develop a Sustainability Management System that will enable 

tracking of the loan/client, with basic impact indicators and 

capable of indicating change. 

 

Capacity Building involves recognition of the relevant social 

and environmental initiatives developed through training 

and/or awareness raising for all stakeholders.  This facilitates 

an understanding and appreciation for the benefits of 

addressing these issues. 

Products Services Portfolio involves being proactive and 

developing specific products targeted at clients with positive 

social and environmental impacts. 

External Reporting which is usually through an annual 

report should  provide some information on the sustainability 

aspects, even if there are challenges in addressing them, for 

the sake of transparency. 

According to the International Labour Organisation (ILO), 

some of the benefits of integrating the social and environmental 

standards into a business strategy are increased productivity, 

reduction of costs and risks, increased consumer trust and 

business opportunities. 

    Accrued Benefits
 i)  Increased productivity as a result of motivated and 

loyal workforce which may be observed through a 

higher retention rate. As more workers are retained, the 

continued capacity building enables them to increase 

skills and professionalism in delivering the company 

product/service. The more the workers become 

professionals the lesser the supervision required from 

managers. This allows management to concentrate on 

quality control by effectively monitoring sub-contractors 

and suppliers to ensure that they conform to the set 

standards and maintain a good image. 

ii)  Reduced costs and risks in the sense that with a higher 

number of employees retained, there are fewer costs of 

recruiting and induction for new workers, a significant 
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decrease in accident rates as well as financial claims for 

work related accidents.  On the other hand, an increase in          

professionalism results in efficiency thus a better quality 

of products and services is achieved at lower production 

costs as well as improved customer care. 

iii) Consumer trust and business opportunities achieved 

through an increased loyalty of clientele, particularly 

those that are sensitive to human rights and environment 

as they feel more comfortable dealing with a responsible 

company. This adds value and improves the company’s 

reputation through media. There is also greater investor 

confidence due to the positive correlation between 

responsible management and financial/economic 

performance. A  good image and investor confidence 

opens up new business opportunities for a company in 

the sense that there would be improved access to new 

markets putting premium on decent  labour conditions 

Key Environmental Issues/Risks
According to Norsad one of our funders, “The environment is 

where we live and development is what we all do in attempting 

to improve our lot within our abode. The two are inseparable”.  

Environmental risks are not the same and are unique in every 

country, relative to its development stage as well as industry / 

sector. The society has the responsibility and capacity to make 

a difference in the way the environment is  used to underpin 

development and well being. Otherwise, studies have shown 

that people are taking more than what the ecosystem can give. 

Environmental sustainability is critical to the attainment of 

some of the millennium development goals, hence effective 

policy responses are needed at all levels of governance.  Some 

of the fundamental environmental risks are exacerbated  by 

the following:   
    

i) Project sector and activities which may cause for 

example consumption of resources, use of hazardous 

materials and equipment, effluents emissions, water 

pollution, wastes and others.    

 ii) Specific location site and potential impacts of operations 

on sensitive  arrears including impacts on biodiversity, 

sanitation, hygiene and climate change. 

iii) Purpose of financing such as site expansion, 

modernisation and  resettlement.

 iv)  The size of the project – small medium or large scale.

 v)  Environmental impact of the supply chain by immediate 

and important suppliers.

Conclusion
The assessment of the environmental and social relevance is 

determined by the expected impacts, risks of the project, the 

capacity of the company to manage these impacts as well as 

the quality of the country’s environmental and social laws, 

regulations and their implementation. 

It is critical for sustainability aspects to be mainstreamed into 

the investment process.  However, it is advisable to consult the 

field specialists where necessary so that they can help devise 

realistic but effective strategies to mitigate the identified 

environmental risks.

Much as it is true that if we do not finance a business, someone 

will, we contend that it is better to have a clear conscience on 

what we do. 

Timber harvesting business

INTEGRATING SUSTAINABILITY ASPECTS IN OUR 
INVESTMENT PROCESS - continued
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An incredible achievement by a sugar cane farmers’ 

group, Mangweni Farmers Association, of paying 

off a E18.9 Million (USD$ 2.4 Million) loan has 

undoubtedly emerged to be the success story of the century 

at FINCORP.  Made up of 103 members or households the 

farmers’ Association has with effect from 2008 attained 

financial independence on a project that has the capacity 

to generate an annual turnover of  E3.5 Million (USD $438 

Million) a year.   

The project was initiated way back in April 2001 in the northern 

Hhohho region at a  place known as Mangweni.  The size of 

the sugar cane project is 183 hectares and is underpinned 

by an annual seasonal inputs budget of E1.5 Million which 

mainly entails farm inputs, irrigation costs, transportation 

and labour.   This effectively means that at the end of each 

harvesting season, beginning this year, the Association will 

have an estimated E2 Million at its disposal to undertake 

projects of their own choice or alternatively distribute same 

to their 103 members as dividends.  One obvious and logical 

option for the Association   is to consider acquiring at least 

two trucks to haul their own cane to the mill which would 

reduce their annual seasonal costs by twenty five per cent.

Apart from just paying off their loan, the Association has 

managed to bring water, electricity and portable sanitation to 

the homesteads of the members. The livelihoods of the families 

have been tremendously improved as they now have access to  

clean water and electricity. Testimonies received from some 

of the members suggest that the benefits of the availability of 

these indispensable ingredients of life are manifested in the 

improved nutrition and level of success of their children at 

school.  In addition the homesteads use the water to grow 

other cash crops such as maize and vegetables. 

Furthermore, Mangweni Farmers Association has over the 

years accumulated assets  worth E500 000 which consist of  

two tractors and harvesting equipment.  Next to the project site 

they have also erected an office block and a large farm inputs 

storage warehouse. The project provides full time employment 

to fifteen permanent employees and one hundred and seventy 

seasonal workers.  Most employees come from the members’ 

families which ensures that the wages are ploughed back into 

developing and improving the livelihoods of the owners of the 

project.

In appreciation of the great achievement FINCORP presented 

the Association with a Toyota bakkie valued at E168 000, a 

certificate of appreciation and two beasts at a debt completion 

ceremony held at Mangweni in the northern Hhohho region 

and was graced by the presence of three Ministers of the 

Crown namely, Finance, Agriculture and Natural Resources  

& Energy.

Sugar cane project Presentation of debt completion certificate by the MD

SUCCESS STORY OF THE CENTURY -FARMERS’ GROUP 
PAYS OFF E18.9 MILLION DEBT - continued
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Strong operating performance in 2009
We produced strong results while facing the effects of the 

global financial crisis as well local business challenges. In our 

customer products, we achieved very good results in Micro 

Loans and Agriculture loans, with a growth of 41% and 33% 

respectively in interest income, and a reasonable growth in 

interest on business loans of 17%.

Financial Key Performance Indicators
To support the Company’s strategy and ensure that FINCORP’s 

performance can be monitored, management utilises a 

number of financial key performance indicators (KPIs). The 

table below presents these KPIs for the period from 2005 

to 2009. At a business level, the KPIs are complemented by 

a range of benchmarks which are relevant to the planning 

process and to reviewing business performance. FINCORP 

has a number of key targets against which future performance 

can be measured. 

Financial Performance Indicators

Net Interest Income growth provides an important guide to 

the Company’s success in generating and sustaining business. 

During the year under review, Net Interest Income grew by  

8 per cent to E44.4 million, reflecting FINCORP’s expansion 

into new products and markets, improved brand recognition 

and refinements in segmentation to better meet customer 

needs. This growth trend has been maintained since inception 

when the growth was at 40 per cent. Higher Net Interest 

Income was largely driven by proper structuring of our long 

term borrowings. The percentage of Net Interest Income 

attributable to net interest income fell from 36 per cent in 2008 

to 16 per cent in 2009, to8%. This deep in growth is largely 

attributable to prime rates which fluctuated by an average of 

200 basis points in each of the previous two years. 

Net Interest Income mix represents the relative distribution 

of Net Interest Income streams between net interest 

income, net fee income and other Net Interest Income. It is 

used to understand how changing economic factors affect 

the Company, to highlight dependence on balance sheet 

utilisation for income generation and to indicate success 

in cross-selling fee-based services to customers with loan 

facilities. This understanding assists management in making 

business investment decisions. Comparison of 

the Net Interest Income mix since 2005 shows 

a trend of net fee income increasing at a lesser 

rate than net interest income. This indicates 

that there is potential for this income category 

to be expanded for growth. The Net interest 

income mix growth decreased in 2009 to 2% 

from 22% in 2008. This was largely due to fair 

value gains from previous years reversing. These fluctuations 

in fair value gains will be over the life of the OPEC debt until 

its contractual maturity.

Year 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Net Interest Income Growth 8% 16% 36% 33% 15%

Net Interest Income mix 2% 22% 34% 33% 11%

Operating Cost Ratio 6% 6% 7% 7% 6%

Operational Efficiency 3.15 2.93 2.82 2.67 3.05

Financial Self Sufficiency 2.07 1.62 1.64 1.34 1.07

Year 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Interest Income  21,163,203  32,027,038  44,046,964  56,393,266  64,638,302 
Net Interest Income mix  20,730,757  27,626,738  36,943,311  45,024,003  46,011,881 
Net Interest Income  19,641,498  26,091,303  35,438,949  41,152,263  44,460,042 
Fee and Other Income    1,089,259    1,535,435    1,504,362    3,871,740    1,551,839 
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Cost efficiency: 

Operating Cost Ratio
The Operating Cost Ratio is usually viewed as a measurement 

of management efficiency. This is because management usually 

has greater control over operating expenses than they do over 

revenues. The operating Cost ratio is calculated as operating 

expenses over average performing assets. Since 2005 the 

operating cost ratio for the company has averaged between 6% 

and 7%. This is indicative of proper cost containment over the 

years.

Operational Efficiency
Operational Efficiency is defined as the ability of an MFI to 

cover all actual operating expenses with adjusted income 

generated through its financial services operations. The 

company has been able to cover its expenses three times with 

its income from financial services, still indicating good cost 

containment.

Financial Self Sufficiency
Financial self Sufficiency is defined as the ability of an MFI to 

cover all actual operating expenses, as well loan impairment 

charges and other credit risk provisions, with adjusted income 

generated through its financial services operations. The table 

above indicates that this rate has been improving from 1.07 in 

2005 to 2.07 in 2009.
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Non-financial Key Performance Indicators
FINCORP has chosen four non-financial KPIs which are 

important to the future success of the Company in delivering 

its strategic objectives. These nonfinancial KPIs are currently 

reported internally within FINCORP.

(i). Employee engagement.

Employee engagement is a measure of employees’ emotional 

and rational attachment to FINCORP. This may be measured 

by our staff turnover which has always been at rates below 3% 

since the company’s inception.

(ii). Customer satisfaction

FINCORP subscribes to the principles of putting the customer 

first. As such we are always market led as opposed to product 

being market driven. This is one way that we strive to satisfy 

our customers at all times. We are grateful to all the customers 

that have supported our company over years.

(iii). IT performance and systems reliability.

The management information system is an important 

functional element for any organisation in the financial 

services industry. An MIS should be supportive of the 

institution’s longer term strategic goals and objectives.  

Selecting the most appropriate management information 

system is critical as the information generated by the system is 

an essential component for prudent and reasonable business 

decisions.  In response to the rapid growth and increase 

in product lines, FINCORP solicited a high-powered fully 

fledged accounting software from a global multinational 

known as Craft Silicon. The software fully integrates both 

the general ledger and loans module.  The MIS fully meets 

the present and future requirements of the organisation and 

generates user friendly reports customised to meet internal 

information requirements. The key feature of the software is 

its ability to manage both group and individual loans, thus 

being squarely in line with the present diverse operations 
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of the organisation.  Whilst FINCORP is presently a credit 

institution only, the MIS provides a module for savings which 

is an area of possible growth in the near future. It is also a 

highly versatile system in that new reporting requirements can 

be met without any major programming requirements to the 

system. The performance of the MIS is continually monitored 

to ensure good service to clients, efficiency in operations and 

portfolio quality.

We will continue to employ technology to create better 

products which we can deliver at lower cost to our customers.

(iv). The future

With the expected injection of capital as detailed above, the 

future of the company looks very bright and we will continue 

helping entrepreneurs to help themselves for the foreseeable 

future.

Measuring the results of our strategy
The fundamentals of FINCORP are very strong. The de-

leveraging of the financial system clearly plays to FINCORP’s 

strengths, given our conservative balance sheet and 

international presence. We will continue to focus FINCORP 

on the parts of the economy that promise the best prospects for 

higher growth over the long term. We will continue to invest 

for profitable growth in line with our strategy, and we will 

do so while maintaining FINCORP’s mandate and financial 

strength, which is at the heart of our success.

WoodCity franchise

Tyre repair business

WoodCity franchise

Timber harvesting business
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2009

The Directors of Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited confirm their commitment to the principles of 

openness, integrity and accountability as advocated in the King II Code on Corporate Governance. Through this process, 

shareholders and other stakeholders may derive assurance that the Corporation is being ethically managed according 

to prudently determined risk parameters in compliance with generally accepted corporate practices. Monitoring the 

Corporation’s compliance with the King Code on Corporate Governance forms part of the mandate of the Corporation’s 

executive committee.

Board of directors

The Board has three committees:

•  The Main Board

•  Audit, Finance and risk committee and

•  Remuneration committee.

Both the Main Board and the other Executive committees meet quarterly, but special Board meetings are convened 

when necessary. The Main Board monitors management and ensures that material matters are subject to Board approval 

such as the approval of loans. The Executive Committee’s main functions are to review the Corporation’s financial statements, 

management accounts, operational matters, staff matters and then advise the Main Board.

The Board comprises 9 directors of whom only one serves in an executive capacity. The board is balanced so that no individual 

or Corporation can dominate decision-making. The directors of the Corporation are listed on page 10. Roles of chairperson 

and chief executive do not vest in the same person and the chairperson is a non-executive. The non-executive directors 

comprise individuals with diverse backgrounds and expertise. The chairperson and managing director provide leadership 

and guidance to the Corporation’s Board and encourage deliberation of all matters requiring the Boards attention, and obtain 

sufficient input from the other board members. The chairperson and directors are elected on a three-year basis.

Risk Management

Effective risk management is essential to the Corporation’s objective of consistently adding value to the business objectives. 

The Corporation’s management is continuously developing and enhancing its risk and control procedures to improve the 

means for identifying and monitoring risks.

Operating risk is the potential for loss to occur through a breakdown in control information, business processes and 

compliance systems. Key policies and procedures are in place to manage operating risk involving segregation of duties, 

transaction authorisation, supervision, monitoring and financial and managerial reporting.

Financial risk management is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
for the year ended 31 March 2009

The directors are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation and integrity of the 

financial statements and the related information. The auditors are responsible for reporting on the fair presentation of the 

financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Swaziland and International Financial 

Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Swaziland Companies Act as amended.

The directors are also responsible for the Corporation’s system of internal financial control. These are designed to provide 

reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements, and to adequately safeguard, verify and 

maintain accountability of the assets, and to prevent and detect misstatement and loss. Nothing has come to the attention of the 

directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred 

during the year under review.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The directors have no reason to believe that 

the Corporation will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash resources. These 

financial statements support the viability of the Corporation.

The financial statements have been audited by the independent accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers, which was given 

unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of the board of directors and committees of 

the board. The directors believe that all representations made to the independent auditors during their audit are valid and 

appropriate. PricewaterhouseCoopers’ audit report is presented on page 35 to 36.

The annual financial statements which appear on pages 37 to 106 have been approved by the board of directors on 

____________________________ and are signed on its behalf by:

_________________________                                           ____________________________

CHAIRMAN                          MANAGING DIRECTOR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION 
LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2009

We have audited the annual financial statements of Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited, which comprise 

the directors’ report, the balance sheet as at 31 March 2009, the income statement, the statement of changes in equity, the cash 

flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set 

out on pages 37 to 106.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Corporation’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with Swaziland and International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Swaziland Companies 

Act 1912. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting 

and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 

control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 

internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Corporation as of 31 

March 2009 and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Swaziland and 

International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Swaziland Companies Act 1912, as amended.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION  
LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2009

Supplementary information
The detailed income statement set out on annexure 1 and the taxation schedules on annexure 2 do not form part of the 

financial statements and are presented as additional information. We have not audited these statements and accordingly we 

do not express an opinion on them.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Partner: Theo Mason

Chartered Accountant (Swaziland)

Mbabane

Date
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Below we are showing a brief review of operations during the financial year ended 31 March 2009.

1. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Portfolio
Our net loan portfolio increased by 3.5% from the previous financial year from E287 million to E297 million. This 

increase has been funded by repayments by our clients as well as borrowings obtained during the year. A summary of the 

loans approved and disbursed during the year is shown below:

  Opening   Disbursed  Closing

  Undisbursed  Amount of  No of  During the  Undisbursed

  31 March 2008  New Loans  New Loans  Year  31 March 2009

Agricultural Loans  492 999  52 111 733  37  49 921 144  2 683 588

SME Loans  12 737 843  168 507 256  234  173 223 774  8 021 325

Sugar Cane Loans  13 881 191  152 498 941 51  154 468 125  11 912 007

Micro Loans  1 214 184  119 191 702  1 521  120 346 528  59 358

Kobwa Loan Scheme  1 619  272 150  30  267 036  6 733

  28 327 836  492 581 782  1 873  498 226 607  22 683 011

Key Performance Indicators
Our performance has shown reasonable improvement over the previous financial year. Compared to industry averages,  

the performance is reasonably competitive. A summary of the key performance indicators is shown below:

Ratio  31-Mar-09  31-Mar-08  Definition
Profitability
Profit Margin  15%  14%  Net Profit / Interest Income
Portfolio Yield  19%  20%  Interest income / average net portfolio
Return on Equity  8%  7%  Net profit / Equity
Return on assets  3%  2%  Net Profit / Total Assets
Portfolio Quality
Loan Loss Reserve Ratio  10%  12%  Accumulated provisions /gross portfolio
Write-off Ratio  0%  0%  Write-offs / gross portfolio
Risk Coverage Ratio  62%  70%  Provision reserve / balance of accounts in arrears
Provision Expense Ratio  3%  4%  Provision expense / gross portfolio
Non-Performing Loans Ratio  19%  18%  Non-Performing Loans less provisions / Equity
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT - continued
for the year ended 31 March 2009

1. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Key Performance Indicators (continued)

Ratio  31-Mar-09  31-Mar-08  Definition

Financial Management

Gearing  1.8  2.0  Debt /Equity

Debt Coverage Service Ratio  2.2  1.8  the ratio of net operating income to debt payments

Financial Expense Coverage Ratio  3.2  2.8  Interest Income / Interest Expense

Financial Expense Ratio  6%  8% Interest expense / net portfolio

Cost Of Funds Ratio  10%  12%  Interest and fee expenses on funding / Total funding

Liquidity Ratio  1%  1%  Cash and Cash Equivalents / Total Assets

Number of Active Clients  5 844  11 790 Active Clients

Average loan size  E58 000  E23 000  Portfolio / Number of active clients

Portfolio to Assets  96%  96%  Portfolio / Assets

Outstanding Group Commitments  13%  13%  Total Undisbursed Loans / Net Portfolio

Efficiency and Productivity

Operating Expense Ratio  7%  7%  Operating expenses / gross portfolio

Operational Efficiency  158%  153%  Financial income / total expenses excl provisions

Financial Self Sufficiency  126%  114%  Financial income / total expenses plus provisions

Operating Cost Ratio  6%  6%  Operating expenses / average performing assets

2. FINANCIAL REVIEW
Interest Income
The interest income for the year increased by 16% from E56 million to E65 million. This is attributable to normal growth as 

our loan portfolio has increased from E329 million to E333 million. Interest rates continued to increase during the year until 

the end of the last third quarter. That also positively contributed to the increase in interest income.

Operating expenses
Our operating expenses are positively correlated to loan portfolio size, as such the increase of our loan portfolio book from 

E329 million to E333 million has caused an increase of 5% in our operating expenses.

Interest Expense
As a non-deposit taking institution, we rely on loan funding. There has therefore been a number of facilities that were concluded 

during the year resulting to the significant increase of 33% in our interest expense.

Provisions
In compliance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instruments, an impairment of loans 

and advances of E10.5 million had to be recognised in the income statement. The requirement of the standard is that the 

impairment be calculated as the difference between carrying amount and the recoverable amount of the loans.

Profit

Despite the high impairment of E10.5 million the corporation has managed a significant after tax profit of E9.7 million.
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3. THE MANAGEMENT OF RISK
Risk management framework and objectives

The board acknowledges its responsibility for establishing and communicating appropriate risk and control policies and 

ensuring that adequate risk management processes are in place. The Corporation has a number of committees which deal 

with the various aspects on policies for accepting risks, including selection and approval of risks to be loans and advances, use 

of limits and avoiding undue concentrations of risk as detailed below:

Responsibility for an Audit, Finance and Risk committee

An audit committee, appointed by the Corporation’s board, is in place to assist the board in discharging its risk management 

obligations.

The principal objectives of the Corporation’s audit, finance and risk management committee are to:

 Review the Corporation’s risk philosophy, strategy, policies and processes recommended by executive management;

 Review compliance with risk policies and with the overall risk profile of the Corporation

 Review and assess the integrity of the process and procedures for identifying, assessing, recording and monitoring 

of risk;

 Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Corporation’s risk management function and its implementation by 

management;

 Ensure that material corporate risks have been identified, assessed and receive attention; and

 Provide the board with an assessment of the state of risk management within the Corporation.

 Act as an effective communication channel between the board on one hand and the external auditors and the head 

of internal audit on the other;

 Satisfy the board that adequate internal, financial and operating controls are being identified, addressed and 

monitored by management and that material corporate risks have been identified and are being contained and 

monitored through the Corporation risk committee; and

 Enhance the quality, effectiveness, relevance and communication value of the published financial statements and 

other public documentation of a financial nature issued by the Corporation, with focus being placed on the actuarial 

assumptions, parameters, valuations and reporting guidelines and practices adopted by the statutory actuary as 

appropriate to the Corporation’s life insurance activities.

A significant part of Corporation’s business involves the acceptance and management of risk. Primary responsibility for risk 

management at an operational level rests with the executive committee. The Corporation’s risk management processes, of 

which the systems of internal, financial and operating controls are an integral part, are designed to control and monitor 

risk throughout the Corporation. For effectiveness, these processes rely on regular communication, sound judgement and 

a thorough knowledge of the products and markets by the people closest to them. Management and various specialist 

committees are tasked with integrating the management of risk into the day-to-day activities of the Corporation.

39



SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT - continued
for the year ended 31 March 2009

3. THE MANAGEMENT OF RISK (continued)

Credit Committee
The Corporation’s Finance and Credit Committee’s principal objectives pertaining to risk are as follows:

•	 Ensure that the Corporation maintains a high quality of our portfolio.

•	 Ensure that the Corporation’s expenditure is properly controlled and monitored.

Remuneration Committee
The Corporation’s Remuneration Committee principal objectives are as follows:

•	 Ensuring that the Corporation recruits and retains staff that is of relevant qualification and good calibre for the 

 maintenance of a quality portfolio.

•	  general guidelines for employee compensation, including variable plans and retirement compensation;

•	 approving variable pay under the previous year’s plan (beginning of each year);

•	 preparation of the long-term variable plan for referral to the Board and subsequent resolution by the General 

 Meeting of Shareholders, and

•	 preparation of the targets for variable pay for the following year for resolution by the Board.

Executive Committee
This Committee’s principal objectives are as follows:

•	 This committee is responsible for all the implementation of the policies and recommendations of the other 

 committees.

•	 It ensures the proper administration and functioning of the Corporation.

•	 It ensures proper reporting to all the other committees and third parties.
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4. SPECIAL PROJECTS

KOBWA REVOLVING FUND
The main objective of the Fund is to assist residents of the communities around the dam to start small businesses and take 

full advantage of the economic activity brought about by the existence of the two dams. Indications are that the people living 

within the vicinity of the dam are beginning to take full advantage of the opportunities brought about by the Credit Scheme.

SWAZILAND DAIRY BOARD CREDIT GUARANTEE FUND
The Guarantee Fund under the scheme is now fully committed. Consequently there were few new entrants for the dairy 

farming business activity during the financial year under review. The escalation of animal feed prices during the financial year 

drastically affected the profitability of the industry thus posing serious challenges for some of the dairy farmers. The absence 

of a sustainable bulk milk marketing channel continues to be a challenge for the industry.

ADB KDDP LOAN FUND
All farmers in the KDDP Area properly completed their cane harvesting for the season. No new developments or expansions 

were undertaken by the farmers during the season. It is hoped that more farmers will take advantage of the European Union 

subsidy for new developments and expansions in the forthcoming season.

NORSAD LOAN FUND
There were no new developments under the NORSAD Loan Fund. The line of credit continues to be of great help to local 

SMEs in various economic sectors.

FUND RAISING
The organisation is looking to table a request for a Government Guarantee of E200 Million to Parliament to mobilize both 

equity and debt finance for the organisation. Exploratory talks have been held with a number funding organisations and 

potential equity investors. However no concrete offers have been confirmed to date. The pledge made by the Ministry of 

Finance to back up our fund raising efforts by way of issuing a Government Guarantee is most appreciated and will go a long 

way in stabilising the liquidity position of the institution.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT - continued
for the year ended 31 March 2009

5.  SHARE CAPITAL
 The authorised share capital is 10 000 ordinary shares at E1 each of which 1 000 ordinary shares have been issued at a   

 premium of E84 224.07 per share, and remained unchanged during one year.

6.  DIVIDENDS
 The directors do not recommend that a dividend be paid in respect of the period under review.

7.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 The directors who acted during the period are:

 Dr. Vincent Mhlanga  Managing Director

 Board members appointed on 1 September 2008:

 Musa Mdluli  Representing Tibiyo TakaNgwane

 Simanga Simelane  Representing Tibiyo TakaNgwane

 Leonard Sithebe  Representing Tibiyo TakaNgwane

 Board members appointed on 1 June 2006:

 Almon Mbingo  Chairperson, Representing Swaziland Government - resigned

  17 September 2008

 Mandla Mavuso  Representing Swaziland Government

 Nomsa Tibane  Representing Swaziland Government

 Musa Sibandze  Representing Swaziland Government

 Mduduzi Zwane  Representing Swaziland Government

  Chairperson of the Board appointed 17 September 2008

 Musa Dlamini  Representing Swaziland Government

8.  AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS
 The audit committee members acted during the period are:

 Musa Mdluli  Chairperson, Representing Tibiyo TakaNgwane

 Simanga Simelane  Representing Tibiyo TakaNgwane

 Nomsa Tibane  Representing Swaziland Government

 Mduduzi Zwane  Representing Swaziland Government

9.  REMUNERATIONS COMMITTEE MEMBERS
 Leonard Sithebe  Chairperson, Representing Tibiyo TakaNgwane

 Musa Sibandze  Representing Swaziland Government

 Mandla Mavuso  Representing Swaziland Government

10. SECRETARY OF THE CORPORATION
 The Secretary of the Corporation is: Mr Dumisani Msibi.
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11.  BANKERS
 The Bankers of the Corporation are:

 First National Bank Swaziland Limited  Nedbank Swaziland Limited

 P O Box 261  P O Box 68

 Eveni  Mbabane

 Swaziland  Swaziland

 Standard Bank Swaziland Limited

 P O Box A294

 Swazi Plaza

 Swaziland

12.  BUSINESS AND POSTAL ADDRESS OF THE CORPORATION
 Business address:  Postal address:

 7th floor, Dlanubeka Building  P O Box 6099

 Corner of Mdada and Lalufadlana Streets  Mbabane

 Mbabane  Swaziland

13.  AUDITORS
 The auditors of the Corporation are PricewaterhouseCoopers

 Business address:  Postal address:

 MTN Office Park  P O Box 569

 Karl Grant Street  Mbabane

 Mbabane  Swaziland

 Swaziland  H100

14.  EVENTS SINCE BALANCE SHEET DATE
 Events since the balance sheet date:

 (a)  have been fully taken into account insofar as they have a bearing on the amounts attributable to assets and/or   

 liabilities at that date;

 (b)  apart from changes in the ordinary course of business, have not made the present financial position    

 substantially different from that shown by the balance sheet;

 (c)  have not required adjustments to the fair value measurements and disclosures included in the financial   

 statements.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2009

 Notes  2009 2008

  E  E

Interest income  1  64 638 302  56 393 266

Interest expense  2  (20 178 260)  (15 241 003)

Net interest income   44 460 042  41 152 263

Fee income   3 414 835  942 535

Net trading (expense)/income  4  (1 370 240)  1 999 688

Dividend income  5  164 979  139 005

Other operating income  6  2 342 265  790 512

Net operating income before loan impairment

charges and other credit risk provisions  46 011 881 45 024 003

Loan impairment charges and other credit risk

provisions 13 (10 535 776) (13 144 570)

Net operating income   35 476 105  31 879 433

Employee compensation and benefits  8  (12 674 430)  (11 366 568)

General and administrative expenses   (7 406 452)  (9 689 043)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  11  (654 955)  (663 981)

Total operating expenses   (20 735 837) (2 1 719 592)

Income from operation before income tax expense 7 14 740 268 10 159 841

Income tax expense  9  (4 997 029)  (2 503 470)

Profit for the year   9 743 239  7 656 3

44



SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
at31 March 2009

45

 Notes  2009 2008

  E  E

ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment  11  3 172 233  3 375 140

Loans and advances  12  297 155 477  286 972 597

Financial investments  14  1 522 500  1 522 500

Derivative financial instruments  23  5 640 713  4 879 921

Other assets  15  14 194 603  13 646 036

Cash and cash equivalents  16  2 976 106  1 270 483

Deferred tax asset  10  81 788  123 325

Total assets   324 743 420 311  790 002

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds

Ordinary share capital  17  1 000  1 000

Share premium  17  84 224 069  84 224 069

General risk reserve  18  5 943 110  5 787 547

Hedging reserve- cash flow hedges   (352 826)  (347 378)

Retained income   25 288 900 15 701 224

Total equity   115 104 253 105 366 462

Liabilities

Borrowings  19  180 082 281  187 905 384

Derivative financial instruments  23  352 826  347 378

Trade and other payable  20  17 872 660  11 502 284

Income tax liability  21  10 281 399  6 363 004

Provisions  22  1 050 001  305 490

Total liabilities   209 639 167 206 423 540

Total equity and liabilities   324 743 420  311 790 002



SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 March 2009

   General Hedging 
 Share Share risk reserve Retained 
 capital premium reserve cash flow income Total
    hedges    
  E  E  E  E  E

Opening balance: 1 April 2008  1 000  84 224  5 787  (534477 378)  15 701 224  105 366 462

Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  9 743 239  9 743 239

Fair value gain on cash flow hedges  -  -  -  (5 448)  -  (5 448)

Transfer to General Risk Reserve  -  -  155 563  -  (155 563)  -

Balance at 31 March 2009  1 000  84 224 069  5 943  (131502 826)  25 288 900  115 104 253

Opening balance: 1 April 2007  1 000  84 224 069  4 800 972  -  9 031 428  98 057 469

Profit for the year  -  -  - - 7 656 371  7 656 371

Fair value gain on cash flow hedges  -  -  -  (347 378)  -  (347 378)

Transfer to General Risk Reserve  -  -  986 575  -  (986 575)  -

Balance at 31 March 2008  1 000  84 224 069  5 787  (534477 378)  15 701 224  105 366 462
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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 Notes  2009 2008

  E  E

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash generated/(utilised) from operating activities 26 13 317 318 (36 649 777)

Taxation paid during the year  21  (1 037 097)  (1 193 661)

Net cash flow from operating activities   12 280 221  (37 843 438)

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  26.1  (662 463)  (250 182)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  42 000 302 593

Net cash (utilised)/generated from investing activities  (620 463) 52 411

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term financing   30 000 000  39 540 412

Long term loans repayments   (27 137 812)  (7 638 183)

Finance lease principal repayments   (777 375)  (525 196)

Net cash inflows from financing activities   2 084 813  31 377 033

Movement in cash and cash equivalents

At start of period   (24 933 205)  (18 519 211)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  13 744 571 (6 413 994)

At end of year  16  (11 188 634)  (24 933 205)



SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies 

have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A  Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Swaziland & International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS) and the Swaziland Companies Act. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 

as modified by available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It 

also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Corporation’s accounting policies. The 

areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant are 

disclosed in the financial statements.

(a)  Standards, amendment and interpretations effective in 2008

 IFRIC 14, ‘IAS 19 – The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction’, provides 

guidance on assessing the limit in IAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that can be recognised as an asset. It also explains 

how the pension asset or liability may be affected by a statutory or contractual minimum funding requirement. This 

interpretation does not have any impact on the corporation’s financial statements, as the corporation does not have a 

defined benefit pension plan, hence not subject to any minimum funding requirements.

 IFRIC 11, ‘IFRS 2 – Group and treasury share transactions’, provides guidance on whether sharebased transactions 

involving treasury shares or involving group entities (for example, options over a parent’s shares) should be accounted 

for as equity-settled or cash-settled share- based payment transactions in the stand-alone accounts of the parent and 

group companies. This interpretation does not have an impact on the corporation’s financial statements.

(b)  Standards and amendments early adopted by the corporation

 During the year there were no standards and amendments that were early adopted by the corporation.

(c)  Interpretations effective in 2008 but not relevant

The following interpretations to published standards is mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2008 but are not relevant to the corporation’s operations:

 IFRIC 12, ‘Service concession arrangements’ (effective from 1 January 2008). IFRIC 12 applies to contractual 

arrangements whereby a private sector operator participates in the development, financing, operation and maintenance 

of infrastructure for public sector services. IFRIC 12 is not relevant to the company’s operations:

 IFRIC 12, ‘Service concession arrangements’ (effective from 1 January 2008). IFRIC 12 applies to contractual 

arrangements whereby a private sector operator participates in the development, financing, operation and maintenance 

of infrastructure for public sector services. IFRIC 12 is not relevant to the company’s operations because the corporation 

does not provide for public sector services.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

A  Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)  Interpretations effective in 2008 but not relevant (continued)

 IFRIC 13, ‘Customer loyalty programmes’ (effective from 1 July 2008). IFRIC 13 clarifies that where goods or services 

are sold together with a customer loyalty incentive (for example, loyalty points or free products), the arrangement is a 

multiple-element arrangement and the consideration receivable from the customer is allocated between the components 

of the arrangement in using fair values. IFRIC 13 is not relevant to the corporation’s operations because the company 

does not operate any loyalty programmes.

 IFRIC 16, ‘Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation’ (effective from 1 October 2008).

 IFRIC 16 clarifies the accounting treatment in respect of net investment hedging. This includes the fact that net 

investment hedging relates to differences in functional currency not presentation currency, and hedging instruments 

may be held anywhere in the company. The requirements of IAS 21, ‘The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’, do 

apply to the hedged item. IFRIC 16 is not relevant to the corporation’s operations.

(d)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted 

by the corporation

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for 

the corporation’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later periods, but the company has not early 

adopted them:

 IAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of financial statements’ (effective from 1 January 2009). The revised standard will prohibit 

the presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the statement of changes in 

equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented separately from owner changes in equity. All non-owner 

changes in equity will be required to be shown in a performance statement, but entities can choose whether to present 

one performance statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or two statements (the income statement and 

statement of comprehensive income). Where entities restate or reclassify comparative information, they will be required 

to present a restated balance sheet as at the beginning comparative period in addition to the current requirement 

to present balance sheets at the end of the current period and comparative period. The company will apply IAS 1 

(Revised) from 1 January 2009. It is likely that both the income statement and statement of comprehensive income will 

be presented as performance statements.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

A  Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted 

by the corporation

 IAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of assets’ (effective from 1 January 2009). The amendment is part of the IASB’s 

annual improvements project published in May 2008. Where fair value less costs to sell is calculated on the basis of 

discounted cash flows, disclosures equivalent to those for value-inuse calculation should be made. The corporation 

will apply the IAS 28 (Amendment) and provide the required disclosure where applicable for impairment tests from 1 

January 2009.

 IAS 23 (Amendment), ‘Borrowing costs’ (effective from 1 January 2009). It requires an entity to capitalise borrowing 

costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial 

period of time to get ready for use or sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The option of immediately expensing those 

borrowing costs will be removed. The corporation will apply IAS 23 (Amended) from 1 January 2009 but is currently 

not applicable to the corporation as there are no qualifying assets.

 IFRS 8, ‘Operating segments ‘(effective from 1 January 2009). IFRS 8 replaces IAS 14 and aligns segment reporting with 

the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131, ‘Disclosures about segments of an enterprise and related information’. 

The new standard requires a ‘management approach’, under which segment information is presented on the same basis 

as that used for internal reporting purposes. The company will apply IFRS 8 from 1 January 2009 but is currently not 

applicable to the company.

(e)  Interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and not relevant for the corporation’s 

operations.

 IFRS 1 (Amendment) ‘First time adoption of IFRS’, and IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’ (effective 

from 1 January 2009). The amended standard allows first-time adopters to use a deemed cost of either fair value or the 

carrying amount under previous accounting practice to measure the initial cost of investments in subsidiaries, jointly 

controlled entities and associates in the separate financial statements. The amendment also removes the definition of 

the cost method from IAS 27 and replaces it with a requirement to present dividends as income in the separate financial 

statements of the investor. The amendment will not have any impact on the corporation’s financial statements.

 IAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’, (effective from 1 July 2009). The revised standard 

requires the effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no change in 

control and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also specifies the 

accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is 

recognised in profit or loss. The amendment will not have any impact on the corporation’s financial statements.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

A  Basis of preparation (continued)

(e)  Interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and not relevant for the corporation’s 

operations (continued).

For example, all payments to purchase a business are to be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent 

payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the income statement. There is a choice on an acquisition-by-

acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s 

proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-related costs should be expensed.

 IAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Employee benefits’ (effective from 1 January 2009). The amendment is part of the IASB’s annual 

improvements project published in May 2008. - The amendment clarifies that a plan amendment that results in a change 

in the extent to which benefit promises are affected by future salary increases is a curtailment, while an amendment 

that changes benefits attributable to past service gives rise to a negative past service cost if it results in a reduction in the 

present value of the defined benefit obligation.

–  The definition of return on plan assets has been amended to state that plan administration costs are deducted in the 

calculation of return on plan assets only to the extent that such costs have been excluded from measurement of the 

defined benefit obligation.

–  The distinction between short term and long term employee benefits will be based on whether benefits are due to be 

settled within or after 12 months of employee service being rendered.

–  IAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets, requires contingent liabilities to be disclosed, not 

recognised. IAS 19 has been amended to be consistent.

 IFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combinations’ (effective from 1 July 2009). The revised standard continues to apply the 

acquisition method to business combinations, with some significant changes.

 IAS 31 (Amendment), ‘Interests in joint ventures’ (and consequential amendments to IAS 32 and IFRS 7) (effective 

from 1 January 2009). The amendment is part of the IASB’s annual improvements project published in May 2008. 

Where an investment in joint venture is accounted for in accordance with IAS 39, only certain rather than all disclosure 

requirements in IAS 31 need to be made in addition to disclosures required by IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments: 

Presentation’, and IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

A  Basis of preparation (continued)

(e)  Interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and not relevant for the corporation’s 

operations (continued).

 IFRS 1 (Amendment) ‘First time adoption of IFRS’, and IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’ (effective 

from 1 January 2009). The amended standard allows first-time adopters to use a deemed cost of either fair value or the 

carrying amount under previous accounting practice to measure the initial cost of investments in subsidiaries, jointly 

controlled entities and associates in the separate financial statements. The amendment also removes the definition of 

the cost method from IAS 27 and replaces it with a requirement to present dividends as income in the separate financial 

statements of the investor. The amendment will not have any impact on the corporation’s financial statements.

 IFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Share-based payment’ (effective from 1 January 2009). The amended standard deals with vesting 

conditions and cancellations. It clarifies that vesting conditions are service conditions and performance conditions only. 

Other features of a share-based payment are not vesting conditions. These features would need to be included in the 

grant date fair value for transactions with employees and others providing similar services; they would not impact the

 number of awards expected to vest or valuation thereof subsequent to grant date. All cancellations, whether by the entity 

or by other parties, should receive the same accounting treatment. The company will apply IFRS 2 (Amendment) from 

1 January 2009. This amendment is not applicable to the corporation.

 IAS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, and IAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of financial 

statements’ – ‘Puttable financial instruments and obligations arising on liquidation’ (effective from 1 January 2009). 

The amended standards require entities to classify puttable financial instruments and instruments, or components 

of instruments that impose on the entity an obligation to deliver to another party a pro rata share of the net assets of 

the entity only on liquidation as equity, provided the financial instruments have particular features and meet specific 

conditions. The company will apply the IAS 32 and IAS 1(Amendment) from 1 January 2009. It is not expected to have 

any impact on the corporation’s financial statements.

 IAS 16 (Amendment), ‘Property, plant and equipment’ (and consequential amendment to IAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’) 

(effective from 1 January 2009). The amendment is part of the IASB’s annual improvements project published in May 

2008. Entities whose ordinary activities comprise renting and subsequently selling assets present proceeds from the sale of 

those assets as revenue and should transfer the carrying amount of the asset to inventories when the asset becomes held for 

sale.  A consequential amendment to IAS 7 states that cash flows arising from purchase, rental and sale of those assets are 

classified as cash flows from operating activities. The amendment will not have an impact on the corporation’s operations 

because none of the company’s ordinary activities comprise renting and subsequently selling assets.

 IFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations’ (and consequential amendment 

to IFRS 1, ‘First-time adoption’) (effective from 1 July 2009). The amendment is part of the IASB’s annual improvements 

project published in May 2008. The amendment clarifies that all of a subsidiary’s assets and liabilities are classified 

as held for sale if a partial disposal sale plan results in loss of control. Relevant disclosure should be made for this 

subsidiary if the definition of a discontinued operation is met. A consequential amendment to IFRS 1 states that these 

amendments are applied prospectively from the date of transition to IFRSs.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

A  Basis of preparation (continued)

(e)  Interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and not relevant for the corporation’s 

operations (continued).

 IAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in associates’ (and consequential amendments to IAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments: 

Presentation’, and IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’) (effective from 1 January 2009). The amendment is part 

of the IASB’s annual improvements project published in May 2008. An investment in associate is treated as a single 

asset for the purposes of impairment testing. Any impairment loss is not allocated to specific assets included within the 

investment, for example, goodwill. Reversals of impairment are recorded as an adjustment to the investment balance

 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the associate increases.

 IAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’(effective from 1 January 2009). The amendment is part of the IASB’s annual 

improvements project published in May 2008. A prepayment may only be recognised in the event that payment has 

been made in advance of obtaining right of access to goods or receipt of services. This amendment is not relevant to the 

corporation as it does not intangible assets.

B  Foreign currency translation

(1)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 

in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Emalangeni, which is the 

Corporation’s functional and presentation currency.

(2)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the measurement currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the 

dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 

translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on debt securities and other monetary financial assets measured at fair value are included in foreign 

exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the income statement.

C  Property, plant and equipment
 Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes 

all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. After recognition as an 

asset, an item of property, plant and equipment shall be carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 

accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the reducing balance method to write off the cost or 

revalued amount of the asset to their residual value over their estimated useful lives as follows:
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

A  Basis of preparation (continued)

(e)  Interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and not relevant for the corporation’s 

operations (continued).

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:-

 Computer Equipment  33%

 Furniture and fittings  10%

 Office furniture  10%

 Motor vehicle  20%

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in operating 

profit. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in fair value reserves are transferred to retained earnings.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.  

The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the assets when it is probable that future economic 

benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing assets will flow to the Corporation. Major 

renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related assets.

D  Impairment of long lived assets

 Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets 

that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 

carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs 

to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there 

are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

E  Loans and advances

 Loans and advances are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers. They are derecognised when either borrower(s) 

repay their obligations, or the loans are sold or written off, or substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 

transferred. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment losses. Where loans and advances are 

hedged by derivatives designated and qualifying as fair value hedges, the carrying value of the loans and advances so 

hedged includes a fair value adjustment for the hedged risk only.

 Losses for impaired loans are recognised promptly when there is objective evidence that impairment of a loan or 

portfolio of loans has occurred. Impairment allowances are calculated on individual loans and on Corporations of 

loans assessed collectively. Impairment losses are recorded as charges to the income statement. The carrying amount 

of impaired loans on the balance sheet is reduced through the use of impairment allowance accounts. Losses expected 

from future events are not recognised.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

F  Loans and advance impairment

Individually assessed loans and advances

For all loans that are considered individually significant, the Corporation assesses on a case-by-case basis at each balance sheet 

date whether there is any objective evidence that a loan is impaired. For those loans where objective evidence of impairment 

exists, impairment losses are determined considering the following factors:

 the Corporation’s aggregate exposure to the customer;

 the viability of the customer’s business model and their capacity to trade successfully out of financial difficulties and 

generate sufficient cash flow to service debt obligations;

 the amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;

 the likely dividend available on liquidation or bankruptcy;

 the extent of other creditors’ commitments ranking ahead of, or pari passu with, the Corporation and the likelihood of 

other creditors continuing to support the Corporation;

 the complexity of determining the aggregate amount and ranking of all creditor claims and the extent to which legal and 

insurance uncertainties are evident;

 the realisable value of security (or other credit mitigants) and likelihood of successful repossession;

 the likely deduction of any costs involved in recovery of amounts outstanding;

Impairment losses are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows of a loan at its original effective interest rate, 

and comparing the resultant present value with the loan’s current carrying amount.

Write-off of loans and advances

A loan (and the related impairment allowance account) is normally written off, either partially or in full, when there is no 

realistic prospect of recovery of the principal amount and, for a collateralised loan, when the proceeds from realising the 

security have been received.

Reversals of impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 

occurring after the impairment was recognised, the excess is written back by reducing the loan impairment allowance account 

accordingly. The write back is recognised in the income statement.

Renegotiated/rescheduled loans

Loans subject to impairment assessment whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer considered past due, but are treated 

as new loans for measurement purposes once the minimum number of payments required under the new arrangements 

has been received. Loans subject to individual impairment assessment, whose terms have been renegotiated, are subject to 

ongoing review to determine whether they remain impaired or should be considered past due. The carrying amounts of loans 

that have been classified as renegotiated retain this classification until maturity or derecognition.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

F.  Loans and advance impairment (continued)

Assets acquired in exchange for loans

Non-financial assets acquired in exchange for loans as part of an orderly realisation are recorded as assets held for sale and 

reported in ‘Other assets’. The asset acquired is recorded at the lower of its fair value (less costs to sell) and the carrying 

amount of the loan (net of impairment allowance) at the date of exchange. No depreciation is charged in respect of assets held 

for sale. Any subsequent write-down of the acquired asset to fair value less costs to sell is recognised in the income statement, 

in ‘Other operating income’. Any subsequent increase in the fair value less costs to sell, to the extent this does not exceed the 

cumulative write down, is also recognised in ‘Other operating income’, together with any realised gains or losses on disposal.

G  Finance and Operating leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Corporation has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 

classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased 

property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance 

balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. 

The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant 

periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired 

under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating 

leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income 

statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. In all significant leasing arrangements in place during the year, 

the Corporation acted as a lessee.

H  Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash or other financial assets. Incremental 

costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.

When such shares are subsequently sold, reissued or otherwise disposed of, any consideration received is included in ‘Total 

shareholders’ equity’, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and related income tax effects.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

I  Financial assets

The Corporation classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, 

loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the 

purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial 

recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

Initial measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, which is the date on which the Corporation assumes or 

transfers substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets are initially recognised as follows:

  Fair value through profit or loss – at fair value on trade date.

  Held-to-maturity and loans and receivables – at fair value on trade date plus transaction costs that are directly 

 attributable to their acquisition.

Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or on trade date 

when they have been transferred and the Corporation has also transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent measurement

1)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets are designated as fair value through profit or loss if they are:

 (i)  used to match investment contract liabilities held at fair value and/or insurance contract liabilities, and this  

 designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies that would otherwise  

 arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or

 (ii)  managed and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. Information about these financial assets is provided  

 internally on a fair value basis to the Corporation Investment Committee. The Corporation investment strategy  

 is to invest in equity and debt securities and to evaluate them with reference to their fair value. Assets that are part  

 of these portfolios are designed upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

I  Financial assets (continued)

1)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value and the fair value adjustments are recognised in the income statement 

within investment gains.

The fair value of financial assets with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets is based on regulated 

exchange quoted ruling bid prices at the close of business on the last trading day on or before the balance sheet date. If a 

quoted bid price is not available for dated instrument the fair value is estimated using pricing models or discounted cash flow 

techniques.

Fair values for unquoted instruments are included in investment gains and losses and are determined as follows;

Unlisted equities (including unlisted variable rate preference shares)

Valuations are determined by either utilising recognised independent qualified valuers or by applying appropriate valuation 

techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis or recent arm’s length market transactions in respect of the equity instrument.

Negotiable certificates of deposit

These instruments are valued using the appropriate rate from the quoted money market yield curve, based on the term to 

maturity of the instrument. A discounted cash flow model is then applied, using the determined yield, in order to calculate 

the market value.

2)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. They arise when the Corporation provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the 

receivable. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These 

are classified as noncurrent assets. Loans and receivables are included in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet.

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

An estimate is made for impairment of loans and receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year end.

3)  Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities 

that the Corporation’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
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SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

I  Financial assets (continued)

3)  Held-to-maturity investments

These assets are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method less any required impairment. As at the reporting date no held-to maturity investments were held.

4)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or cannot be classified in any 

of the other categories.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date, the date on which the Corporation commits to purchase or 

sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cost for all financial assets not carried at fair 

value through profit or loss.

Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred 

and the Corporation has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and 

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-

maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Realised and unrealised gains and 

losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are included 

in the income statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value 

of non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity. When securities classified as available-for-

sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the income statement as gains and losses 

from investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active, the 

Corporation establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, 

reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models 

refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

The Corporation assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a Corporation 

of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline 

in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the securities are impaired. If any such 

evidence exists for availablefor- sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition 

cost and fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from 

equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments 

are not reversed through the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

I   Financial assets (continued)

4)  Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or 

changes in interest rates, are classified as available-for-sale; and are included in noncurrent assets unless management has the 

express intention of holding the investment for less than 12 months from the balance sheet date or unless they will need to be 

sold to raise operating capital, in which case they are included in current assets.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Corporation commits to 

purchase or sell the asset. Cost of purchase includes transaction costs.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, and available-for-sale investments are subsequently carried at fair value. 

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective yield method. Realised and unrealised gains 

and losses arising from changes in the fair value of trading investments and available-for-sale investments are included in the 

income statement in the period in which they arise.

The fair values of investments are based on stock exchange quoted bid prices or amounts derived from cash flow models. Fair 

values for unlisted equity securities are estimated using applicable price/earnings or price/cash flow ratios refined to reflect 

the specific circumstances of the issuer. Equity securities for which fair values cannot be measured reliably are recognised at 

cost less impairment.

5)  Offset of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset in the amount represented in the balance sheet when the Corporation has 

a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount, and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets 

and settle the liability simultaneously.

J Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises of interest income accounted in the income statement on the accrual method. Revenue from rendering 

of services is recognised by reference to the completion of the specific transaction assessed as the basis of the actual service 

provided as a proportion of the total services provided when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with a 

transaction will flow to the Corporation and the amount of revenue, and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be 

measured reliably.

(a)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, 

the Corporation reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted 

at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest 

income on impaired loans is recognised either as cash is collected or on a cost–recovery basis as conditions warrant.
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J Revenue recognition (continued)

From an operational perspective, it suspends the accrual of interest on a loan when its recovery is considered doubtful. 

However, in terms of IAS 39 interest income on impaired advances is thereafter recognised based on the original effective 

interest rate used to determine the recoverable amount.

(b)  Non-interest income

Fee income

The Corporations earns fee income from a diverse range of services provided to its customers. Fee income comprise mainly 

of application fee, loan monitoring fee and management fee. Fee income is accounted for as follows:

 income earned on the execution of a significant act is recognised as revenue when the act is completed (for example, 

project monitoring)

 income earned from the provision of services is recognised as revenue as the services are provided (for example, 

asset management, portfolio and other management advisory and service fees); and

 Income which forms an integral part loan or project appraisal (application fee) is recognised when the application 

of loan is being approved.

Net trading income/ (expense)
Net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities held 

for trading, together with related interest income, expense and dividends.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. This is the ex-dividend date for equity 

securities.

Commission income
The Corporation recognises commission income on an accrual basis when the service is rendered.

K  General Risk Reserve
General provisions which are calculated at 2% of the net loans after specific provisions are dealt with within the statement of 

changes in equity as appropriation of retained earnings. This treatment is in accordance with the Corporation policies.

L  Financial Instruments
Financial instruments carried in the balance sheet include cash and bank balances, investments, receivables, trade creditors, 

leases and borrowings and derivatives. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy 

statements associated with each item.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

(1)  Financial risk factors

The Corporation’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including currency risk, fair value interest risk and price 

risk. The Corporation’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 

minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Corporation. The Corporation uses derivative financial 

instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Board of Directors. Management identifies, 

evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Corporation operating units. The Board provides written 

principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as interest rate risk, credit risk 

and investing excess liquidity.

a)  Market risk

b)  Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Corporation operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, 

primarily with the US dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises when from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and 

liabilities. 

To manage the foreign currency exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities, 

the Corporation use forward contracts. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions or recognised 

assets and liabilities are denominated in the currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

As at 31 March 2009, if the Lilangeni weakened by 5% against the US dollar with all the other variables held constant, post tax 

profits for the year would have been E 923 046 (2008: E 1 013 727) lesser mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses on the 

translation of US dollar denominated borrowings.
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L  Financial Instruments (continued)

b)  Market risk (continued)

ii)  Price risk

Price risk includes equity price risk and cash flow and interest rate risk.

a)  Equity Price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

The Corporation is currently not exposed to equity price risk because at the balance sheet date there were no investments held 

by the Corporation and classified either as available for sale or at fair value through profit and loss.

The permanent shares at Swaziland Building Society classified as “available-for-sale” are not exposed the equity price risk 

since they are redeemable at nominal value.

b)  Commodity Price risk

Commodity price risk arises from the risk of an adverse effect on current or future earnings resulting from fluctuations in the 

prices of commodities.

The Corporation is also not exposed to commodity price risk. As the Corporation is not trading on commodity, therefore the 

risk is not considered.

i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow and interest rate risk is the risk that the value and cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in 

market interest rates.

As the Corporation has significant interest-bearing assets, the Corporation’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 

independent of changes in the market interest rates. The Corporation has no policies in place to hedge against fluctuating 

interest rate.

The Corporation’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the 

Corporation to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings and long-term loans issued at fixed rates expose the Corporation to 

fair value interest rate risk. Currently there are no loans issued at fixed interest rate, however, linked to prime lending rate and 

as such the Corporation is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

During 2008 and 2009, the Corporation’s borrowings at variable rates were denominated in the Swaziland lilangeni and US 

Dollars.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

(1)  Financial Instruments (continued)

ii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

The Corporation analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into 

consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the 

Corporation calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift. The scenarios are run only for liabilities 

that represent the major interest-bearing positions.

A change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the 

amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same 

basis for 2008:

  Profit or loss   Equity 
  2009 2008 2009 2008
  E E E E

Increase of 50 basis points  901 499  939 527  901 499  939 527

Decrease of 50 basis points  (901 499)  (939 527)  (901 499)  (939 527)

The simulation is done on a quarterly basis to verify that the maximum loss potential is within the limit given by the 

management.

The table below gives an indication of the Corporation’s monetary sensitivity to changes in interest rates.

  Financial Cash at bank Loans and Borrowings
  investment  advance
  E  E  E  E

Base amounts  1 522 500  2 976 106  346 526 921  180 299 818

Interest plus 1%  1 537 725  3 005 867  349 992 190  182 102 816

Interest less 1%  1 507 275  2 946 345  343 061 652  178 496 820

(iv)  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the Corporation 

to incur a financial loss.

The Corporation has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterpart will be unable to pay amounts in full when 

due. Key areas where the Corporation is exposed to credit risk are:

-  loans and advances,

-  other assets,

-  Derivative financial instruments

-  Cash and cash equivalents

-  Deposits with banks and other financial institutions.
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(1)  Financial Instruments (continued)

(v)  Credit risk (continued)

The Corporation structures the levels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single counterpart, or 

Corporations of counterparties. Such risks are subject to an annual or more frequent review.

The major concentration of credit risk arises from the Corporation’s receivables and investment securities in relation to the 

nature of customers and issuers. No collateral is required in respect of financial assets. Reputable financial institutions are 

used for investing and cash handling purposes.

Mechanisms are in place to monitor the risk of default by individual loan holders. Exposures to individual loan holders and 

Corporation of loan holders are collected within the ongoing monitoring of the controls associated with regulatory solvency. 

Where there exists significant exposure to individual loan holders, or homogenous Corporation of loan holders, a financial 

analysis carried out by the Corporation.

Quality control and risk department makes regular reviews to assess the degree of compliance with the Corporation 

procedures on credit and the overall control environment.

At balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is 

represented by the carrying value of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

The table below shows the credit limit and balance of the ten major counterparties at the balance sheet date.

  31 March 2009  31 March 2008

Counterparty    Credit limit  Balance  Credit limit  Balance

       E  E E  E

Swaziland Development and Savings Bank    900 000  900 000 - -

African Alliance Swaziland     -  -  1 200 000  1 200 000

Lilanga Lentontozi     8 481 201  6 645 546  7 825 754  7 825 754

Genesis Investments (Pty) Ltd     -  -  8 944 926  8 944 926

Swaziland Industrial Development Company Limited   5 380 000 5 043 000 - -

Vuka Sidwashini    10 537 480  4 969 595  10 537 480  9 272 689

Hhohho Cotton Growers    14 670 766  10 410 973  19 405 766  14 003 063

Nkhwanyana Chistopher     5 929 515  4 619 700  5 059 354  5 059 354

Mlobi Investmenta (Pty) Ltd     5 486 120  4 820 505  5 486 120  4 837 480

Emtini (Pty) Ltd    12 600 000  8 935 725  -  -

      63 085 082  45 445 044  57 259 400  49 943 266
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

(1)  Financial Instruments (continued)

(vi)  Credit risk (continued)

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and management does expect losses from non-performance by 

some of these counterparties.

(vii)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with 

financial instruments.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding 

through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Corporation 

maintains sufficient cash and near cash assets to meet its liquidity commitments. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying 

businesses, the Corporation aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Corporation’s liquidity reserve (comprises undrawn borrowing facility and 

cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flow.

Forecasted liquidity reserve per 31 March 2009 is as follows:

   31-Mar-2010  2011 - 2012

Opening balance for the period  (11 188 634)  28 444 785

Net Operating Proceeds  59 843 675  133 406 222

Net Operating Outflows  (33 784 467)  (74 072 744)

Net cash utilised from investing activities  (2 916 364)  (47 036 138)

Net cash inflow from financing Activities  16 490 575  (11 050 544)

At End of the year  28 444 785  29 691 581

The table below analyses the Corporation’s financial into relevant maturity groups based on the remaining period at the 

balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash 

flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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(1)  Financial Instruments (continued)

(v)  Liquidity risk (continued)

  Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
  1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years Total
  E  E  E  E  E

31 March 2009

Financial Liabilities:

Trade and other payables  17 872 659     17 872 659

Bank overdraft  14 164 740 - - - 14 164 740

Finance lease liabilities  804 476  501 936 - - 1 306 412

Other short term liabilities  217 537 - - - 217 537

Long term liabilities  47 202 875  65 032 005  27 022 970  25 353 279  164 611 129

  80 262 287  65 533 941  27 022 970  25 353 279  198 172 477

31 March 2008

Financial Liabilities:

Trade and other payables  11 502 284  -  -  -  11 502 284

Bank overdraft  26 203 688  -  -  -  26 203 688

Finance lease liabilities  775 700  775 700  532 387  -  2 083 787

Other short term liabilities  14 540 412  -  -  -  14 540

Long term liabilities 25 061 182 26 061 182  50 596 120  43 359 013  145 077 497

  78 083 266  26 836 882  51 128 507  43 359 013  199 407 668

The Corporation’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern 

in order to provide returns and benefits for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 

capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Corporation may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 

return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt or enter into further financing as applicable.

The Corporation monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. 

Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the balance sheet) less 

cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

L  Financial Instruments (continued)

(2)  Capital risk management (continued)

During 2009, the Corporation’s strategy, which show a significant change from 2008, was to maintain the gearing ratio (before 

interest accrual is taken into account) of 50%. The gearing ratios before interest accrual at 31 March 2009 and 2008 were as 

follows:

  2009  2008

  E  E

Total borrowings  180 082 281  187 905 384

Less: cash and cash equivalents  (2 976 106)  (1 270 483)
 

Net debt  177 106 175  186 634 901

Total equity  115 104 253  105 366 462
 

Total capital  292 210 428  292 001 363

Gearing ratio  60%  64%

The decrease in the gearing ratio during 2009 resulted primarily from the repayment of a short term loan of E12 million from 

African Alliance. In addition, the Corporation reduced its bank overdraft from E26.2 million to E14.1 million.

(3)  Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active market (such as trading and available for sale securities) is based on 

quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Corporation is 

the current bid price.

The carrying value of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to the short-term 

nature of trade receivables. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future 

contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Corporation for similar financial instruments.

For financial assets and liabilities with maturity of less than one year, the face value less any estimated credit adjustments are 

assumed to approximate their fair values.
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M  Derivative financial instruments and hedging accounting

Derivatives are recognised initially, and are subsequently re-measured, at fair value. Fair values of exchange traded derivatives 

are obtained from quoted market prices. Fair values of over-the-counter derivatives are obtained using valuation techniques, 

including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is 

positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Derivatives may be embedded in other financial instruments, for example, a convertible bond with an embedded conversion 

option. Embedded derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not clearly 

and closely related to those of the host contract; the terms of the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a stand-

alone derivative if they were contained in a separate contract; and the combined contract is not held for trading or designated 

at fair value. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes therein recognised in the income statement.

Derivatives are classified as assets when their fair value is positive or as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Derivative 

assets and liabilities arising from different transactions are only offset if the transactions are with the same counterparty, a 

legal right of offset exists, and the parties intend to settle the cash flows on a net basis.

The method of recognising fair value gains and losses depends on whether derivatives are held for trading or are designated as 

hedging instruments, and if the latter, the nature of the risks being hedged. All gains and losses from changes in the fair value 

of derivatives held for trading are recognised in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of the effective portions of derivatives that are designed and qualify as fair value hedges and that 

prove to be highly effective in relation to hedged risk, are recorded in the income statement, along with the corresponding 

change in fair value of the hedged asset or liability.

Certain derivative transactions, while providing economic hedges under the risk management policies, do not qualify for 

hedge accounting under the specific rules in IAS 39 and are therefore treated as derivatives held for trading with fair value 

gains and losses reported in income.

Hedge accounting

On the date a derivative is entered into, the Corporation designates certain derivates as either:

i)  a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability (“fair value hedge”), or

ii)  a hedge of a future cash flow attributable to a recognised asset or liability, a forecasted transaction or a firm 

commitment (“cash flow hedge”).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

M  Derivative financial instruments and hedging accounting  (continued)

At the inception of a hedging relationship, the Corporation documents the relationship between the hedging instruments and 

the hedged items, its risk management objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Corporation also requires 

a documented assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether or not the hedging instruments, 

primarily derivatives, that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting the changes attributable to the 

hedged risks in the fair values or cash flows of the hedged items. Interest on designated qualifying hedges is included in ‘Net

interest income’.

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedging instruments are recorded in 

the income statement, along with changes in the fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities or Corporation thereof that are 

attributable to the hedged risk.

If a hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the cumulative adjustment to the carrying amount 

of the hedged item is amortised to the income statement based on a recalculated effective interest rate over the residual period 

to maturity, unless the hedged item has been derecognised, in which case, it is released to the income statement immediately.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised 

in equity within the cash flow hedging reserve. Any gain or loss in fair value relating to an ineffective portion is recognised 

immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect 

profit or loss. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a 

non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial 

measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any 

cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity until the forecast transaction is eventually recognised 

in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was 

reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

The Corporation had not entered into a cash flow hedge arrangement or designated any derivative as such at year-end.
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M  Derivative financial instruments and hedging accounting  (continued)

Hedge effectiveness testing

To qualify for hedge accounting, the Corporation requires that at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life, each 

hedge must be expected to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness), and demonstrate actual effectiveness (retrospective 

effectiveness) on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method the 

Corporation adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend on its risk management strategy. For prospective effectiveness, 

the hedging instrument must be expected to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to 

the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is designated. For actual effectiveness to be achieved, the changes in 

fair value or cash flows must offset each other in the range of 80 per cent to 125 per cent.

Hedge ineffectiveness is recognised in the income statement in ‘Net trading income’.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting 
All gains and losses from changes in the fair values of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised 

immediately in the income statement. These gains and losses are reported in ‘Net trading income’. Currently, the Corporation 

does not hold any derivative that does not qualify for hedge accounting.

N Taxation

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Currently enacted tax rates are used in the 

determination of deferred income tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 

the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets are recognised for all temporary 

difference arising from the following differences:

i)  The excess of book values of fixed assets over their written down values for tax purposes;

ii)  The excess of book values of finance leases over their written down values for tax purposes;

iii)  Income and expenditure in the financial statements of the current year dealt with in other

 years for tax purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

N Taxation  (continued)

Current Tax

The charge for the current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profits for the current period. It 

is calculated using tax rate that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

O  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount 

can be made. Where the Corporation expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the 

reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The Corporation recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are 

less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract.

Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination payments, and are recognised in 

the period in which the Corporation becomes legally or constructively committed to payment. Costs related to the ongoing 

activities of the Corporation are not provided in advance.

P  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and 

cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held with banks, other short term high liquid investments with original 

maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are included within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Q  Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective 

evidence that the Corporation will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The 

amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 

flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

R  Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at the fair value of proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred, when they become 

party to the contractual provisions. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method; any difference between the proceed (net of transaction value) and the redemption value is recognised in the income 

statement over the period of the borrowings.
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S Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related 

service. The provision for employee entitlements to salaries and annual leave represent the amount that the Corporation has 

a present obligation to pay, as a result of employees’ services provided up to the balance sheet date. The provision has been 

calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current salary rates.

Pension Obligations

The Corporation operates a defined contribution plan. The Corporation pays contributions to a privately administered 

pension plan on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. Once the contributions have been paid, the Corporation has no 

further payment obligations. The regular contributions constitute net periodic costs for the year in which they are due and as 

such are included in staff costs.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or 

whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Corporation recognises termination 

benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminate the employment of current employees according to a detailed 

formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage 

voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are discounted to present value.

Performance bonus

A liability for employee benefits in the form of performance bonus is recognised in current provisions when there is no 

alternative but to settle the liability, and at least one of the following conditions is met;

-   there is a formal plan and the amounts to be paid are determined before the time of issuing the financial statements; or

-   past practice has created a valid expectation by employees that they will receive a bonus and the amount can be  determined  

   before the time of issuing the financial statements.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 

when they are settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009 - continued

S Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical information, experience and other factors, 

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The corporation makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimate will by definition, 

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amount of loans and receivables within the next financial year as discussed below.

Estimated impairment of loans and receivables

The Corporation tests annually whether loans and receivables suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting 

policy stated in F. The recoverable amounts of loans and receivables have been determined based on discount cash inflows. 

These calculations require the use of estimates (Note 12 and 13).

T  Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired; or when the 

Corporation has transferred its contractual right to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, and either:

– Substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred; or

– The Corporation has neither retained nor transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, but has not retained control.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or 

expires.

U  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and 

settle the liability simultaneously.

V  Comparative Figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the current year.
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     2009  2008

1  Interest income  E  E

 Revenue consists of the aggregate of interest income

 received and accrued.

 The analysis of interest income by category/section is as

 follows:

 Business loans   20 540 695  17 514 358

 Micro loans   26 738 801  18 899 664

 Agriculture loans   8 286 198  6 243 961

 Sugar cane loans   9 072 608  13 735 283

 Total interest income   64 638 302  56 393 266

 The analysis of interest income by measurement is as

 follows:

  Loans and
  advance - Interest in
  Gross Suspense Total
  E  E  E

 31 March 2009

 Business loans  21 639 426  (1 098 731)  20 540 695

 Micro loans  26 738 801  -  26 738 801

 Agriculture loans  8 856 065  (569 867)  8 286 198

 Sugar cane loans  11 595 667  (2 523 059)  9 072 608

  68 829 959  (4 191 657)  64 638 302

 31 March 2008

 Business loans  18 195 958  (681 600)  17 514 358

 Micro loans  18 899 664  -  18 899 664

 Agriculture loans  6 539 621  (295 660)  6 243 961

 Sugar cane loans  14 225 466  (490 183)  13 735 283 

 Total interest income  57 860 709  (1 467 443)  56 393 266

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 March 2009

    2009  2008

1  Interest expenditure  E  E

 The analysis of interest expense by category is as  follows:

 Bank borrowings   2 917 951  2 850 271

 Finance leases   242 535  251 046

 Interest payable on long term loans   17 017 774  12 139 686

   20 178 260  15 241 003

 The analysis of interest expenditure by measurement is 

 as follows:

  Measured at Measured at

  fair value amortised cost Total

  E  E  E
 

 31 March 2009

 Bank borrowings  2 917 951  -  2 917 951

 Finance leases  242 045  -  242 045

 Interest payable on long term loans  -  17 017 774  17 017 774

 Total interest expense  3 159 996  17 017 774  20 178 260

 31 March 2008

 Bank borrowings  2 850 271  -  2 850 271

 Finance leases  251 046  -  251 046

 Interest payable on long term loans  -  11 935 604  11 935 604

 Total interest expense  3 101 317  11 935 604  15 036 921

3  Fee income   2009  2008

   E  E

 Application fee   159 155  742 550

 Loan Monitoring fee   151 184  133 420

 Management fee   104 496  66 565

   414 835  942 535
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    2009  2008

   E  E

4  Net trading income/(expense)

 Fair value adjustments on currency swap

     - Forward foreign exchange contracts- fair value hedge  847 362 5 059 931

     - Forward foreign exchange contract terminated   -  (792 509)

 Foreign exchange losses on long term loan   (2 217 602)  (2 267 734)

   (1 370 240)  1 999 688

5  Dividend income

 Dividend income   164 979  139 005

 Dividend income received from Swaziland Building

 Society in respect of permanent shares.

6  Other operating income

 Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment   -  11 511

 Interest on staff loans   403 248  325 812

 Other non-interest income   1 93 901  453 189

   234 226  790 512
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    2009  2008

7  Income from operation before income tax  E  E

 Income from operations before income tax is arrived at

 after taking into account the following items:

 Auditors remuneration     -     current year audit fees

                                                      provision  236 070 219 600

 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

                     - Property, plant and equipment   301 293  265 947

                     - Leased assets under finance lease   353 662  398 034 

   654 955  663 981

 Net impairment charges and other credit risk

                     - Loan impairment charges and other credit risk   10 900 552  13 817 111

                     - Bad debts written off   199 045  3 442 353

                     - Bad debts recovered   (364 776)  (672 541)

   10 734  16 586 923

 Director expenses   115 722  113 691

 Donations

                     - Donation expense   87 000  187 747

                     - Donation on leased vehicle   -  153 993

   87 000  341 740

 

 Legal fees   109 526  190 817

 Loss/(profit) on disposal on property, plant and

 equipment  168 416 (11 511)
 

 Repairs and maintenance   20 929  41 704

 Operating lease rentals   766 293  698 474

 Professional fees   140 903  116 101

 Employee compensation and benefits (note 8)   12 674 430  11 366 568

 Travelling and entertainment & international conferences   1 305 526  512 022
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    2009  2008

8 Employee compensation and benefits  E  E

 Salaries and wages   9 233 739  7 965 445

 Provident Fund Contributions   47 380  43 390

 Pension costs (defined contribution plan)   1 096 476  880 757

 Other benefits and costs   34 421  235 814

 Staff training   1 363 878  1 415 044

 Medical aid contribution   898 536  826 118

   12 674 430  11 366 568

 The average number of persons employed by the

 Corporation during the year was 41 (2008:41).

9  Income tax expense
 Swaziland normal Corporation taxation

 - Current tax (refer note 21)   4 955 492  2 229 430

 - Deferred tax (refer note 10)   41 537  274 040

   4 997 029  2 503 470

 Taxation rate reconciliation:

 Standard taxation rate   30.00%  30.00%

 Expenses not allowed/(Income not subject to tax)   3.68%  (5.36%)

 Effective taxation rate   33.68%  24.64%

10  Deferred tax
 Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on temporal differences under the 

 liability method using a principal  tax rate of 30% (2008:30%). Deferred tax arises 

 from the following item:

 The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

 At the beginning of the year   123 325  397 365

 Income statement charge (refer note 9)   (41 537)  (274 040)

 At end of the year   81 788  123 325
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10 Deferred tax (continued)

 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 

against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The movement in 

deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction) during the period is 

as follows:-

  Opening Charged to Closing
  balance Profit or loss balance
  E  E  E

 31 March 2009

 Deferred tax assets:

 Provisions  91 646  223 355  315 001

 Capitalised finance lease assets  31 679  (264 892)  (233 213)

  123 325  (41 537)  81 788

 31 March 2008

 Deferred tax assets:

 Provisions  374 635  (282 989)  91 646

 Capitalised finance lease assets  22 730  8 949  31 679

 At end of the year  397 365  (274 040)  123 325
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11  Property, plant and equipment

   Leased 

  Computer Furniture Office Motor Motor

  Equipment  & fittings  Equipment  Vehicles  Vehicles  Total

  E  E  E  E  E  E

Year ended 31 March 2009

Opening Balance  256 180  664 216  330 534  146 018  1 978 192  3 375 140

Additions  62 810  -  9 753  589 900  -  662 463

Disposal  (3 276)  (31 118)  -  (39 592)  (136 429)  (210 415)

Depreciation  (96 547)  (63 699)  (33 590)  (107 457)  (353 662) (654 955)

Closing net book amount  219 167  569 399  306 697  588 869  1 488 101  3 172 23

At 31 March 2009

Cost   862 192  871 022  447 558  1 393 788  2 970 908  6 545 46

Accumulated depreciation  (643 025)  (301 623)  (140 861)  (804 919)  (1 482 807)  (3 373 235)

Net book amount  219 167  569 399  306 697  588 869  1 488 101  3 172 23

Year ended 31 March 2008

Opening balance  291 084  720 364  251 086  284 268  1 465 120  3 011 922

Additions  69 668  16 453  113 712  50 349  1 068 099  1 318 281

Disposals  (246)  -  (1 329)  (132 514)  (156 993)  (291 082)

Depreciation  (104 326)  (72 601)  (32 935)  (56 085)  (398 034)  (663 981)

Closing net book amount  256 180  664 216  330 534  146 018  1 978 192  3 375 140

At 31 March 2008

Cost   802 658  902 140  437 805  843 480  3 107 337  6 093 420

Accumulated depreciation  (546 478)  (237 924)  (107 271)  (697 462)  (1 129 145)  (2 718)

Net book amount  256 180  664 216  330 534  146 018 1  978 192 3  375 140

Leased motor vehicles comprised of 15 motor vehicles, which were acquired during the year under finance leases (where the 

Corporation is the lessee).
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12.  Loans and advances   2009 2008

    E E

 Sugar cane loans   80 881 869  96 861 292

 Business and other loans   166 543 897  147 149 114

 Micro loans   85 115 037  85 427 548

 Gross advances   332 540 803  329 437 954

 Less: Impairment   (35 385 326)  (42 465 357)

 - sugar cane loans   (9 447 802)  (24 820 557)

 - business and other loans   (25 937 524)  (17 644 800)

 Total loans and advances   297 155 477  286 972 597

 The maturity of loans and advance is as follows:

 Not later than 1 year   129 924 525  136 554 245

 Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years   65 862 215  60 548 038

 Later than 3 years   136 754 063  132 335 671

   332 540 803  329 437 954

 The nominal interest rates on receivables (current and non-current) 

 were as follows:  2009  2008

   %  %

 Business and other loans   15.5  15.5

 Micro loans   36  36

 The analysis of sugar cane loans is as follows:-

 Sugar cane loans   80 881 869  96 861 292

 Loans financed internally sourced funds   (64 723 295)  (75 006 978)

 Loans financed by African Development Bank Funds   16 158 574  21 854 314
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12.  Loans and advances (continued)   2009 2008

    E E

 Sector analysis of loans and advances is as follows:

 Consumer loans   85 115 037  85 427 548

 Dressmaking/tailoring & knitting   898 967  949 720

 Fruits and vegetables   9 475 512  9 301 286

 Grocery and retailing   5 021 675  4 581 244

 Handicraft   204 378  47 032

 Hawking   438 369  472 895

 Heavy Haulage   38 070 059  35 065 462

 Livestock   16 629 540  16 256 799

 Maize and other cereal   7 269 362  6 457 172

 Other Agricultural activities   4 678 155  4 491 797

 General business   72 610 408  58 668 901

 Poultry   3 260 581  3 201 931

 Sugar cane farming   80 881 869  96 861 292

 Transport services   7 986 891  7 654 875

   332 540 803  329 437 954

 Impairment of loans and advances   (35 385 326)  (42 465 357)

   297 155 477  286 972 597

 The fair values of loans and advances are as follows:

 Sugar cane loans   71 434 067  72 040 735

 Business and other loans   140 606 373  129 504 314

 Micro loans   85 115 037  85 427 548

   297 155 477  286 972 597

 The above values of loans and advances approximate fair value. There is no concentration of credit risk with 

respect to loans and advances, as the Corporation has a large number of clients that are industry dispersed. The 

Corporation’s historical experience in collection of loans and advances falls within the recorded allowances. Due to 

these factors, management believes that no additional credit risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is 

inherent in the Corporations’ loans and advances. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the 

fair value of each class of loans and advances mentioned above. The Corporation does hold collateral as security on 

some loans and advance.
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12.  Loans and advances (continued)   2009 2008

    E E

 Loans and advances that are less than three months past  due are not 

considered impaired. As of 31 March 2009, loans and advances of 

E 23 341 376 (2008: E 19 865 197) were past due but not impaired. 

These relate to a number of independent clients for whom there is no 

recent history of default.

   The ageing analysis of these loans and advances that are past due 

but not impaired is as follows:

 Up to 3 months   22 242 255  15 320 875

 Over 3 months   1 099 121  4 544 322

   23 341 376  19 865 197

 As of 31 March 2009, loans and advances of E 35 385 326 (2008: 

E 42 753 173) were impaired and provided for. The amount of the 

provision was E 35 385 326 (2008: E 42 753 174). The individually 

impaired loans and advances were mainly relating to sugar cane 

farmers and business and other agricultural loans, which are in 

unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing of these 

receivables is as follows:

 The ageing analysis of these loans and advances is as follows:

 Up to 3 months   15 324 267  23 511 357

 Over 3 months   20 061 059  18 954 000

   35 385 326  42 465 357

 The carrying amounts of the Corporation’s loans and

 advances are denominated in the following currencies:

 Emalangeni (SZL)   297 155 477  286 972 597
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12.  Loans and advances (continued)   2009 2008

    E E

 Movements on the Corporations’ provision for

 impairment of loans and advances are as follows:

 At 1 April   42 465 357  31 651 811

 Provision for loans and advances impairment (Note 13)   19 488 357  13 817 111

 Loans and advances written off during the year as uncollectible  (17 980 582) (3 003 565)

 Unused amounts reversed (Note 13)   (8 587 806)  -

 Unwind of discount   -  -

 At 31 March   35 385 326  42 465 357

The creation and release of provision for impaired loans and advances have been included as a separate line in 

the income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off, when there is no 

expectation of recovering additional cash. The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain 

impaired assets.

 The analysis of carrying amount and impairment of sugar cane 

 loans rescheduled as at 31 March 2009 is as follows:

  Gross   Average

  Carrying  Net carrying period of

  amount Impairment Amount rescheduling

 Sugar cane loans

 rescheduled 16 560 097 5 206 963 11 353 133 3 years

   2009  2008

   E  E

13.  Impairment of loans and advances
 Present value adjustment relating to IAS 39   (10 900 552)  (13 817 111)

 Bad debts recovered   364 776  672 541
 

   (10 535 776)  (13 144 570)
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14.  Financial investment   2009 2008

    E E

 Swaziland Building Society permanent shares   1 522 500  1 522 500

 The investment has been pledged as security in respect of

 staff housing loans with Swaziland Building Society

 (refer note 27).

 The carrying amount of the investments approximates fair

 value. The shares will be redeemed at nominal value.

15.  Other assets
 Accrued interest   13 162 054  12 639 382

 Less: Interest in suspense   (4 191 657)  (3 669 838)

   8 970 397  8 969 544

 Staff loans   4 163 604  4 465 594

 Prepayments   26 740  37 263

 Other receivables   1 033 862  173 635

   14 194 603  13 646 036

16.  Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash at bank   2 970 042  1 265 257

 Cash in hand   6 064  5 226

   2 976 106  1 270 483

 For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash

 equivalent comprise the following:

 Cash and bank balance   2 976 106  1 270 483

 Bank overdraft (Note 19)   (14 164 740)  (26 203 688)

 Cash and cash equivalents   (11 188 634)  (24 933 205)
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16.  Cash and cash equivalents (continued)   2009 2008

    E E

 First National Bank of Swaziland Limited

  The Corporation has an overdraft facility with First National Bank of Swaziland Limited of  E 3 000 000 to be 

utilised for working capital requirements. Furthermore, First National Bank of Swaziland Limited provided the 

Corporation with a short term pre-settlement facility of the cross currency swap amounting to E 1 000 000.

 The facilities are on a fluctuating basis and are secured by a negative pledge of assets. Interest rate is charged at 

prime overdraft rate and payable monthly in arrears.

 The facilities are expiring within one year after date of commencement and are subject to annual review at various dates.

 Standard Bank Swaziland Limited

 In 2007, the Corporation increased its level of bank overdraft to an overdraft facility amounting to E20 000 000 

with the Standard Bank of Swaziland Limited to finance working capital requirements. The overdraft facility is 

secured by cession of the Corporation’s micro loan book totalling E49 000 000 and repayable on demand. Interest 

is charged at prime rate prevailing from time to time per annum.

    2009  2008

    E  E

17.  Share capital
 The share capital of the Corporation consists of the following:

 Authorised

     10 000 ordinary shares at E1 each    10 000  10 000

 Issued

     1 000 ordinary shares    1 000  1 000

 Premium on issue of shares    84 224 069 84 224 069



SWAZILAND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 March 2009

88

18.  General risk reserve

 The general risk reserve arises from the disclosure requirement as per the Corporation’s policy regarding the treatment 

of general provisions. General provisions are accounted for through the statement of changes in equity in general risk 

reserve.

   2009  2008
   E  E
 

 Opening balance   5 787 547  4 800 972

 General provisions raised during the period   155 563  986 575

 Closing balance   5 943 110  5 787 547

19.  Borrowings
 Bank overdraft (Note 16)   14 164 740  26 203 688

 Long term loans (Note 19.1)   164 611 129  145 077 497

 Finance lease liabilities (Note 19.2)   1 306 412  2 083 787

 Other short term borrowings (Note 19.3)   -  14 540 412

 Total borrowings   180 082 281  187 905 384

19.1  Long term loans
 The analysis of long term loans is as follows:

 Swaziland Government  19.1.1  26 000 000  26 000 000

 Swaziland Government - ADB  19.1.2  53 802 955  53 802 955

 OPEC Fund  19.1.3  18 460 918  20 274 542

 Swaziland National Provident Fund  19.1.4  14 500 000  15 000 000

 Norsad  19.1.5  24 375 000  30 000 000

 Swaziland Development and Savings Bank  19.1.6  27 472 256  -

 Total long term loans   164 611 129  145 077 497
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19.  Borrowings (continued)    

19.1.1  Swaziland Government
 The loan with the Swaziland Government (E 10 million), received 11 February 2003, is for a 10 year period 

at 8% interest per annum payable semi annually on 30 June and 31 December. The capital amount is payable 

in two instalments of E5m on 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2013. Furthermore, an additional loan amounting to  

E 20 Million was obtained from the Central Bank of Swaziland through the Swaziland Government on 06 

March 2006. The Corporation is to lend the money to deserving and potential and existing entrepreneurs. 

Interest is payable at a fixed rate of 6.5% per annum and paid half yearly whilst the capital shall be repaid in five 

annual instalments of E 4 Million from 6 March 2008.

19.1.2  Swaziland Government – ADB
The African Development Bank (ADB) in terms of which the bank advanced E150 million to the Government 

for the purposes of financing agricultural activities on the Komati Downstream Development Project. For this 

purpose, the Swaziland Government advanced E75 million to Swaziland Development Finance Corporation 

Limited. The amount will be advanced to the Corporation in five trenches of E12,500,000, E12,500,000, 

E19,230,000, E10 823 355 and E19 946 645 at 10.5% per annum. The principal and interest payments shall 

commence 2 years after date of disbursement, with the first payment made on 31 December 2006. The loan shall 

be repaid over a period of 10 years and the last payment due on 31 December 2019.

19.1.3  OPEC Fund
The OPEC is a line of credit amounting to US $ 3 Million to Swaziland Development Finance Corporation 

Limited. Interest accrues from day to day and is pro rated on the basis of 360 days at a floating rate of LIBOR 

plus 2% margin. Repayment of the capital shall be made on the second anniversary of the first disbursement 

(07/11/2007) to 7 November 2012. As at 31 March 2009 US $ 1 909 092 was payable to OPEC Fund.

19.1.4  Swaziland National Provident Fund
The Swaziland National Provident Fund (SNPF) loan agreement in terms of which will lend Swaziland 

Development Finance Corporation Limited E 15 million. Interest is calculated at prime minus one percent 

(prime-1%) per annum on the outstanding balance and is chargeable bi-annually on the anniversary date of 

the median dates of the draw downs. The repayments shall be made in 10 annual instalments of E 1.5 million 

with the first instalment date after the expiry of the first anniversary date of the median date of draw downs. The 

first drawn down was for E 5 million obtained on 22 April 2006 and the last drawn down amount was for E 10

million obtained on 13 January 2008.
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19.  Borrowings (continued)    

19.1.5  Norsad

 The Norsad Agency loan agreement in terms of which will lend and advance E 30 million to Swaziland 

Development Finance Corporation. Interest is at variable interest rate of prime per annum calculated on the 

outstanding balance on the basis of a 360-day year composed of 12 months of 30 days each. The repayments 

shall be made in 7 years inclusive of one (1) grace period. Amounts due as a percentage of total disbursed shall 

be 4.17% and interest payable quarterly in March, June, September and December. The first drawn down was for 

E 15 million obtained on 07 December 2006 and the last drawn down amount was for E 15 million obtained on 

01 April 2007.

19.1.6  Swaziland Development and Savings Bank
The Swaziland Development and Savings Bank loan is a thirty six month loan at prime plus 3.5%. Interest and 

capital repayment is monthly. The loan will be settled on 31 December 2011. As part of the conditions of the 

loan, a call account had to be opened and a monthly deposit of E300 000 to be made to accumulate a deposit 

balance of E5million. These funds may be redeemed in settlement of the loan on 31 December 2011. The loan 

is secured by a session of proceeds from Swaziland Government in respect of Sugar Cane subsidy due to the 

Corporation.

 The maturity of the long term borrowing is as follows:

   2009  2008
   E  E

 Within 1 year   47 202 875  25 061 182

 Between 1 and 2 years   65 032 005  26 061 182

 Between 2 and 5 years   27 022 970  50 596 120

 Over 5 year   25 353 279  43 359 013

 Total long term borrowings   164 611 129  145,077,497 

 Long term loans- minimum payments

 Not later than 1 year   70 950 77  39 991 377

 Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years   79 771 608  31 737 937

 Later than 2 year and not later than 5 years   48 550 602  83 629 292

 Later than 5 years   26 020 552  55 017 160

   225 293 532  210 375 766

 Future finance charges on finance leases   (60 682 403)       (65,298,269)

   164 611 129  145,077,497 
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19.  Borrowings (continued)    

The carrying amounts and fair value of the long term loans are as follows:

   Carrying  Fair
   Amount  Values
   E  E

Swaziland Government    26 000 000  25 470 049

Swaziland Government - ADB    53 802 955  62 794 557

OPEC Fund    18 460 918  18 632 318

Swaziland National Provident Fund    14 500 000  14 974 776

Norsad Agency    24 375 000  24 625 025

Swaziland Development and Savings Bank    27 472 256  28 692 451

   164 611 129  175 189 176

19.2  Finance lease liabilities
The present values of the finance lease liabilities is as follows:

   2009  2008
   E  E

Not later than 1 year    804 476  775 700

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years    501 936  1 308 087

Total non-current portion    1 306 412  2 083 787

Finance lease liabilities- minimum lease payments

Not later than 1 year    918 790  1 016 270

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years    536 468  1 455 528

   1 455  25 2 471

Future finance charges on finance leases    (148 846)  (388 011)

   1 306 412  2 083 787

19.3  Other short term loans
African Alliance Swaziland (Note 19.3.1)    -  12 000 000

Other borrowings    -  2 540 412

   -  14 540 412
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19.  Borrowings (continued)    

19.3.1  African Alliance Swaziland

In 2008, the Corporation issued a E 12 million promissory note to African Alliance Swaziland. The 6 months 

promissory note is negotiable for another 6 months on maturity. Interest rate is at prime plus 1% and will 

remain so for the duration of the paper. Interest is payable on 3 month anniversary and the principal will be 

due on maturity. The commencement date of the note is 08/02/08 and an arranger fee of 1% was due as an 

initial fee. In accordance with the terms of the promissory note, the Corporation opened a Lilangeni account 

with African Alliance and deposited E 1.2 million, as no collateral on the amounts loaned. During the year, the 

promissory note was paid in full.

20 . Trade and other payables 

   2009  2008
   E  E

 Trade payables   1 251 462  698 608

 Accruals   482 952  497 882

 Accrued interest   16 138 246  10 305 794

   17 872 660  11 502 284

21.  Income tax liability
 Opening balance   6 363 004  5 327 236

 Taxation paid during the year   (1 037)  (1 193)

 Current year tax (refer note 9)   4 955 492  2 229 430

 Closing balance   10 281 399  6 363 004
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22.  Provisions
    

  Performance
  bonus and gratuity  Leave pay  Total
  E  E  E

31 March 2009

At 1 April 2008   110 111  195 379  305 490

Additional provision   746 203  610 716  1 356 919

Utilised during the year   (110 111)  (502 297)  (612 408)

At year-end   746 203  303 798  1 050 001

31 March 2008

At 1 April 2007   498 507  750 280  1 248 787

Additional provision   110 111  597 845  707 956

Utilised during the year   (498 507)  (1 152 746)  (1 651 253)

At year-end   110 111  195 379  305 490

Analysis of total provisions:    2009  2008
   E  E
Current    1 050 001  305 490

Leave pay provision

The leave pay provision related to vested leave pay to which employees are entitled. The provision arises as 

employees render services that increase their entitlement to future compensated leave. The provision is utilised 

when employees, who are entitled to leave pay, leave the employment of the Corporation or when accrued 

entitlement is utilised. This provision in respect of staff and employees calculated on the number of days that 

the employees have not taken in respect of their leave entitlement. The anticipated utilisation of the amount 

provided is in the near future.

Performance bonus

Provision is made for payments in accordance with a bonus plan for the year ended 31 March 2009. The bonus 

provision consists of a performance based bonus, which is determined by reference to the overall Corporation 

performance with regard to a set of pre-determined key performance area. The cash flow results have been 

approved.
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23.  Derivative financial instruments
 Fair values of derivatives by product contract type held

 by the Corporation is as follows:-

  Financial assets  Financial liabilities
  2009  2008  2009  2008
  E  E  E  E
 

 Cross currency swaps:-

 Forward foreign exchange swap- fair

 value hedge 5 640 713 4 879 921 - -

 Interest rate swaps – fair value hedges  -  -  352 826  347 378

  5 640 7143  879 921  352 826  347 378

At 31 March 2009, Borrowings included an amount of E 18 460 918 (2008: E 20 274 542) in respect of a long 

term loan due in foreign currency, which has been hedged using the forward exchange contract stipulated 

above.

(a) Forward foreign exchange swaps- fair value hedge

The hedged highly probable forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to occur at 

various dates during the next 12 months. Fair value gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

(b) Interest rate swaps

Effective 31 December 2007, the fixed interest rate is 10.6% and the main floating rates are LIBOR plus 2%. 

Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in statement of changes in equity on interest rate swap 

contracts as of 31 March 2009 will be continuously released to the income statement until the repayment of the 

borrowings.

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value from the price of foreign exchange and credit spreads. 

Derivatives enable users to increase, reduce or alter exposure to credit or market risks. The Corporation makes 

markets in derivatives for its financiers and uses derivatives to manage its exposure to credit and market risks.

Derivatives are carried at fair value and shown in the balance sheet as a separate total of assets and liabilities. Asset 

values represent the cost to the Corporation of replacing all transactions with a fair value in the Corporation’s favour 

assuming that the entire Corporation’s relevant counterparties default at the same time, and that transactions can 

be replaced instantaneously. Likewise, liability values represent the cost to the Corporation’s counterparties of 

replacing all their transactions with the Corporation with a fair value in their favour if the Corporation were to 

default. Derivative assets and liabilities on different transactions are only set off if the transactions are with the 

same counterparty, a legal right of set-off exists and the cash flows are intended to be settled on a net basis.
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23.  Derivative financial instruments (continued)    

The Corporation entered into a cross currency swap arrangement with Rand Merchant Bank (RMB) to hedge 

against foreign exchange risk on its foreign currency based commitment with the OPEC Fund for International 

Development.

The Corporation transacts derivatives for the primary purpose of managing and hedging its own risk. Cross 

currency swap agreement was entered into to manage exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange 

rate on the based commitment with the OPEC Fund for International Development. The Corporation’s credit 

risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if counter parties fail to perform their obligation.

Hedging instruments

The Corporation uses derivatives (principally cross currency swaps) for hedging purposes in the management 

of its own asset and liability portfolios and structural positions. This enables the Corporation to optimise the 

overall cost of accessing debt capital markets, and to mitigate the market risk which would otherwise arise from 

structural imbalances in the maturity and other profiles of its assets and liabilities. The accounting treatment of 

hedge transactions varies according to the nature of the instrument hedged and the type of hedge transactions. 

Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if they are fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or 

investment hedges. These are described under the relevant headings below:

Notional contract amounts of derivatives held for

hedging purposes by product type:-

  Financial assets  Financial liabilities
  2009  2008  2009  2008
  E  E  E  E

Cross currency swaps:-

Forward foreign exchange swap- 

fair value hedge 5 640 713  4 879 921 - -

Interest rate swaps – fair value hedges  -  -  352 826  347 378

 5 640 713  4 879 921  352 826  347 378

With respect to exchange rate, the notional contract amounts of these instruments indicate the nominal value of 

transactions outstanding at the balance sheet date; they do not represent amounts at risk.
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23.  Derivative financial instruments (continued)     

 Fair value hedge
The Corporation’s fair value hedges principally consist of cross currency swaps that are used to protect against 

changes in the fair value of fixed-rate long-term financial instruments due to movements in market foreign 

exchange. For qualifying fair value hedges, all changes in the fair value of the derivative and in the fair value of 

the item in relation to the risk being hedged are recognised in the income statement. If the hedge relationship is 

terminated, the fair value adjustment to the hedged item continues to be reported as part of the basis of the item 

and is amortised to the income statement as a yield adjustment over the remainder of the hedging period.

Fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are as follows:-

  Financial assets  Financial liabilities
  2009  2008  2009  2008
  E  E  E  E

Cross currency swaps:-

Forward foreign exchange swap- 

fair value hedge 5 640 713 4 879 921 - - 

Interest rate swaps – fair value hedges  -  - 352 826  347 378

 5 640 713  4 879 921 352 826  347 378

Movements and Analysis of gains or losses 

arising from fair value hedges is as follows:

Fair value at the beginning of the year  4 879 921  792 509  347 378  -

Additional fair value hedging instruments  760 792  -  5 448  -

Utilised or terminated fair value hedging

Instruments (Note 4) - (792 509) - -

Fair value gains or losses on fair value

hedges - 4 879 921 - 347 378

 5 640  4 879 921  352 826  347 378
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24.  Contingencies
 Contingent liabilities

 At 31 March 2009 the Corporation had contingent liabilities in respect of a bank guarantee arising out in the 

ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise as the liability will 

not crystallise. In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation has given guarantees amounting to E1 522 

500 (2008: E 1 522 500) to Swaziland Building Society in respect of staff housing loans.

25.  Commitments
 Capital Commitments

 Loan amounts contracted and approved for at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial 

statements are as follows:

    2009  2008
    E  E

 Loan amounts approved but not disbursed   22 683 011 28 327 836

 Current and future cash resources will fund the above loan amounts.

 Operating lease commitments –where the Corporation is the lessee.

 The future aggregate minimum lease payments under noncancellable

 operating lease are as follows:

 Not later than 1 year    428 766  400 680

 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years    2 562 012  1 994 543

 Later than 5 years    608 212  1 593 862

    3 598 990  3 989 085

 The Corporation entered into an operating lease agreement with Swaziland National Provident Fund Properties. 

Operating rentals amounts to E 31 800 per month with an annual fixed escalation rate of 6%.
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    2009  2008
    E  E

26.  Cash utilised by operations 

 Cash flows from operating activities:

 Profit for the period before taxation  14 740 269  10 159 841

 Adjustment for non-cash items:

  Bad debts  199 045  3 442 353

  Impairment of loans and advances  10 900 552  13 817 111

  Depreciation  654 955  663 981

  Net trading expense/(income) (Note 4)  1 370 240  (1 999 688)

  Loss/(profit) on sale of fixed assets  168 416  (11 511)

 Operating profit before working capital changes  28 033 477  26 072 087
 

 Decrease in working capital  (14 716 159)  (62 721)

 Increase in loans and advances  (21 282 476)  (60 985 365)

 (Increase) in other current assets  (548 568)  (4 466 271)

 Increase in current liabilities  6 370 374  3 673 069

 Increase in provisions  744 511  (943 297) 

 Net cash outflows from operating activities  13 317 318  (36 649 777)

26.1  Purchase of property, plant and equipment

 Addition of property, plant and equipment (Note 11)  662 463  1 318 281

 Property, plant and equipment purchased by finance lease  -  (1 068 099)

 Property, plant and equipment purchased by internal funds 662 463 250 182
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27 . Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortised cost. 

The summary of significant accounting policies in Note 2 describes how the classes of financial instruments are 

measured, and how income and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table 

analyses the carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities by category as defined in IAS 39 and by balance 

sheet heading.

    Financial Derivatives   
   assets and designated 

   Available liabilities at as fair value
  Loans and for sale armotised hedging 
  receivables securities cost instruments Total
  E E E E E

 As at 31 March 2009

 Financial assets

 Loans and advances  297 155 477  -  -  -  297 155 477

 Financial investment  -  1 522 500  -  -  1 522 500

 Other asset  14 194 163  -  -  -  14 194 163

 Cash and cash equivalent  -  2 976 106  -  -  2 976 106

 Derivative financial instruments - - - 5 640 713 5 640 713

  311 349 640  4 498 606  -  5 640 713  321 488 959

 Financial liabilities

 Bank overdraft  -  -  14 164 740  -  14 164 740

 Finance lease liabilities  -  -  1 306 412  -  1 306 412

 Long term liabilities  -  -  164 611 129  -  164 611 129

 Derivative financial instruments - - - 352 826 352 826

 Other short term liabilities -  -  -  -  -

 Trade and other payables  -  -  17 872 660  -  17 872 660

  -  -  197 954 941  352 826  198 307 767
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27 . Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis (continued)

    Financial Derivatives   
   assets and designated 

   Available liabilities at as fair value
  Loans and for sale armotised hedging 
  receivables securities cost instruments Total
  E E E E E

 As at 31 March 2008

 Financial assets

 Loans and advances  286 972 597  -  -  -  286 972 597

 Financial investments  -  1 522 500  -  -  1 522 500

 Other assets  13 646 030  -  -  -  13 646 030

 Cash and cash equivalent  -  1 270 483  -  -  1 270 483

 Derivative financial instruments - - - 4 879 921 4 879 921

  300 618 627  2 792 983  -  4 879 921  308 291 531

 Financial liabilities

 Bank overdraft  -  -  26 203 688  -  26 203 688

 Finance lease liabilities  -  -  2 083 787  -  2 083 787

 Long term liabilities  -  - 145 077 497  -  145 077 497

 Derivative financial instruments - - - 347 378 347 378

 Other short term liabilities -  -  14 540 412  -  14 540 412

 Trade and other payables  -  -  11 502 384  -  11 502 384

  -  -  199 407 768  347 378  199 755 146
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28.  Credit quality of financial assets
 The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the credit 

rating about the counterparty:

      Derivatives
       designated
    Cash and  as fair value 
  Loans and  cash Financial hedging
  advance Other assets equivalents instruments instruments Total
  E E E E E E

 As at 31 March 2009

 Counterparties without

 external credit ratings

 - Low Risk  188 169 162  14 412 140  2 976 106  1 522 500  5 640 713  212 720 621

 - General Credit risk  13 495 871  -  -  -  -  13 495 871

 - High risk  144 861 888 - - - -  144 861 888

   346 526 921  14 412 140  2 976 106  1 522 500  5 640 713  371 078 380

  As at 31 March 2008

  Counterparties without

  external credit ratings

  - Low Risk  177 163 463  13 850  11 9270  483 1 522  540 0879 921  198 686 486

  - General Credit risk  32 900 212  -  -  -  -  32 900 212

  - High risk  119 374 279 - - - -  119 374 279

   329 437 954 13 850 119 1 270 483 1 522 500 4 879 921 350 960 977

 

 The grouping of loans and advances is based on the following:

 Low risk- This category is utilised for the performing loans that are classified as current and 2 months due, and mainly 

comprise of consumer loans and business loans.

 General credit risk- This category is for all clients’ accounts that are 60-91 days due, where a moderate credit risk is 

taken. Included in the category are Agricultural loans.

 High Risk- this category is for all high risk clients and comprises all clients immediately they are over 91 days due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 March 2009

29. Financial instruments – maturity
 The Corporation’s financial instruments are made up of

 the following financial assets and liabilities by maturity:

   Between 1  Between 2  
  Less than and and Over
  1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years  Total
  E  E  E  E  E 

31 March 2009
Financial Assets:
Other assets  14 412 140  -  -  -  14 412 140
Financial investment  1 522 500     1 522 500
Loans and advances  143 884 083  65 862 215  102 092 038  34 662 025  346 500 361
Cash and bank  2 976 106  -  -  -  2 976 106
Derivative financial instruments  -  -  -  5 640 713  5 640 713

  162 794 829  65 862 215  102 092 038  40 302 738  371 051 820

Financial Liabilities:
Trade and other payables  17 872 659  -  -  -  17 872 659
Bank overdraft  14 164 740  -  -  -  14 164 740
Finance lease liabilities  804 476  501 936  -  -  1 306 412
Other short-term liabilities  217 537  -  -  -  217 537
Derivative financial liabilities  -  -  -  352 826  352 826
Long term liabilities  47 202 875  65 032 005  27 022 970  25 353 279  164 611 129

  80 262 287  65 533 941  27 022 970  25 706 105  198 525 303

31 March 2008
Financial Assets:
Other assets  13 850 119  -  -  -  13 850 119
Financial investment  1 522 500     1 522 500
Loans and advances  136 554 245  60 548 038  97 064 811  35 270 860  329 437 954
Cash and bank  1 270 483  -  -  -  1 270 483
Derivative financial instruments  -  -  -  4 879 921  4 879 921

  153 197 347  60 548 038  97 064 811  40 150 781  350 960 977

Financial Liabilities:
Trade and other payables  11 502 284  -  -  -  11 502 284
Bank overdraft  26 203 688  -  -  -  26 203 688
Finance lease liabilities  775 700  775 700  532 387  -  2 083 787
Other short term liabilities  14 540 412  -  -  -  14 540 412
Derivative financial instruments  -  -  -  347 378  347 378
Long term liabilities 25 061 182 26 061 182  50 596 120  43 359 013  145 077 497

  78 083 266  26 836 882  51 128 507  43 706 391  199 755 046
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30. Assets charged as security for liabilities 2009  2008
  E  E

 Financial assets pledged to secure liabilities were as

 follows as at 31 March 2009:
 

 Loans and advance  80 000 000  80 000 000

 Cash and cash equivalents  900 000  1 200 000

 Financial instrument  1 522 500  1 522 500

 Property, plant and equipment

 - Assets under finance lease  1 488 100  1 978 192

  83 910 600  84 700 692

 These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to

 standard securities lending and repurchase agreements.

31.  Litigation

 The Corporation is party to a number of legal actions arising out of its normal business operations in which it has 

taken some of its clients for non-performing of loans and advances to court. In the on-going legal actions, there are 

no litigations that are against the Corporation.

 Management considers that none of the actions is material, and none is expected to result in a significant favourable 

effect on the financial position of the Corporation, either individually or in the aggregate.

 Management believes that adequate provisions have been made in respect of such litigation. The Corporation 

has not disclosed any contingent liability or asset associated with these legal actions because it is not practicable 

to do so.

32.  Related party transactions

 The Corporation is controlled by the Swaziland

 Government, which own 70% of the Corporation shares.

 The remaining 30% of the shares are held by Tibiyo

 TakaNgwane, in trust for the Swazi Nation.

 The following transactions were carried out with related

 parties.
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32. Related party transactions (continued) 2009  2008
  E  E

(i)  Loan from related parties: 

 Movement:

 At 1 April  79 802 955  72 303 355

 Loans advanced during the year  -  7 499 600

 Loan repayments received  -  -

 At 31 March  79 892 955 79 802 955

 Amounts due from related party:

 Swaziland Government - ADB  53 802 955  53 802 955

 Swaziland Government  26 000 000  26 000 000

  79 802 955  79 802 955

 The provision of funds to the Corporation by the Government of Swaziland is based on long term agreement that 

enable Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited to obtain financing below the normal market interest 

rate (prime lending rate). The Swaziland Government offer financing with interest rate ranging between 6.5% and 

8%, which is below the prime lending rate of 12.5% (2008: 15%). Funding obtained from Tibiyo TakaNgwane by 

the Corporation was at prime lending rate.

(ii)  Loan to the Managing Director:

 Balance at beginning of the year  570 330  436 810

 Capital adjustments  319 239  205 000

 Interest accrued during the year  62 641  64 156

 Loan repayments during the year  (151 915)  (135 636)

 Balance at the end of the Period  800 295 570 330

 The initial loan was advanced to the Managing Director as a property loan, repayable over 17 years, interest 

rate is based on the Swaziland Building Society mortgage rate, which is currently 11.25%. The loan has been 

secured by a first mortgage bond over the property in favour of the Corporation. During the year three loans 

were granted to the Managing Director being school fees loans of E 111 000 and 154 000 at an interest rate 

of prime +4.5%. Furthermore a car loan amounting to E 54 239 granted at an interest rate of prime +4.5%.  

All the loans are repayable over a 48 month period.
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32. Related party transactions (continued) 2009  2008
  E  E

(iii)  Loan to the member(s) of the board of directors: 

 Loan to Sima Holdings

 Balance at beginning of the year  106 351  141 317
 Capital adjustments  -  -
 Interest accrued during the year  20 510  22 634
 Loan repayments during the year  (35 220)  (57 600)

 Balance at the end of the year  91 641 106 351

 The above loan was granted to Sima Holdings, a Corporation in which Mandla Mavuso, 
a board member, is a co-owner and director. Sima Holdings is an IT consultancy business 
and was on 16 March 2006 granted a E 200 000 loan with a prime plus 4.5% interest and 
repayable over a 36 month period. Both the directors of the Corporation are sureties to the 
loan.

 Loan to Musa Sibandze

 In the year ended 2008, the board approved a loan amounting E 1 310 000 to Musa Sibandze, 
a board member. The loan was approved with an interest rate of prime + 4.5% with a 60 
months repayment period. As at year end, no amount has been disbursed in with regard to 
the approved amount.

(iii)  Doubtful debts

 There is no provision for doubtful debts, nor any bad debt written off during the year, that relates to related parties.

33.  Financial guarantees  2009  2008
  E  E
 National Maize Corporation  33.1  248 162  248 162
 Swaziland Dairy Board  33.2  1 588 805  1 572 596
 Voluntary Deferred Pay Guarantee Fund  33.3  2 776 935  2 703 512
 Komati Basin Water Authority  33.4  326 272  420 481
 Shewula Account  33.5  30 547  30 547
 Customer Deposit Account  33.6  1 551 668  826 394

 Balance at the end of the Period   6 522 389  5 801 692

33.1  National Maize Corporation (NMC) Guarantee
 Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited has agreed to administer loans to local maize farmers. NMC 

will pay 8% of the total amount loaned by the Corporation as management fee at the end of each season. NMC has 
agreed to provide up to E2 million as guarantee against these loans. The funds are kept in a separate bank account 
called NMC Credit Guarantee Fund with interest accruing to the NMC Fund. On these loans E0 was outstanding 
as at 31 March 2009.
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33.  Financial guarantees (continued)

33.2  Swaziland Dairy Board (SDB)

 Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited has agreed to administer loans to smallholder dairy farmers. 

SDB will pay 10% of the total amount loaned by the Corporation as management fee at the end of each season. 

SDB has agreed to provide up to E1.5 million as guarantee against these loans. The funds are kept in a separate 

bank account called SDB Credit Guarantee Fund with interest accruing to the SDB fund. Swaziland Development 

Finance  Corporation Limited acts as signatories to this account. On these loans E 1 359 674 was outstanding as at 

31 March 2009.

33.3  Voluntary Deferred Pay Special Fund (VDPSF)

 In terms of a 5 year contract with VDPSF, Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited has agreed 

to administer loans to qualifying ex-miners in order to enable them to engage in meaningful income generating 

activities. VDPSF will pay 8% of the total amount loaned by the Corporation as management fee at the end of each 

season. VDPSF agreed to provide E2.5 million as guarantee against these loans. The funds are kept in a separate bank 

account called Voluntary Deferred Pay Guarantee Fund with interest accruing to the VDPS fund. On these loans  

E 13 526 was outstanding as at 31 March 2009.

33.4  Komati Basin Water Authority (KOBWA)

 Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited has agreed to administer loans to communities in the Peri 

Reservoir Area around the Maguga Dam in an effort to promote entrepreneurial development thus strengthening 

the small enterprise sector. KOBWA will pay 10% of the total amount loaned by the Corporation as management fee 

on a quarterly basis from the date of disbursement of the first loan. KOBWA agreed to provide up to E0.5 million as 

guarantee against these loans. The funds are kept in a separate bank account called KOBWA Scheme account with 

interest accruing to the KOBWA fund. Swaziland Development Finance Corporation Limited acts as signatories to 

this account. The carrying amount of these loans as at 31 March 2009 was E 122 335.

33.5  Shewula Account

 The values reflected as Shewula funds in the books refers to funds that were left by volunteers from Italy to FINCORP 

on behalf of shewula people. These volunteers from Italy had come to the country to help set up a certain project for 

the Shewula people. They could not finish this project and there were funds remaining for the project. Realising that 

they could not give it to anyone there to oversee the completion of the project, they decided to give the money to 

FINCORP to advance to people seeking to start projects that will develop Shewula. So far no one has come up with a 

project to be advanced on in that respect.

33.6  Customer deposit Account

 FINCORP sometimes requires that some projects be secured by a deposit. These deposit monies are then banked 

with Swaziland Building Society in the clients name but with FINCORP holding the deposit book and the withdrawal 

rights of the funds from Swaziland Building Society. After the client has settled the funds are withdrawn and given 

to the client with interest. As at year end there were 51 (2008: 43) sub-accounts (clients) to the Customer Deposit 

Account.
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   2009  2008
  E  E

 INCOME
 Interest receivable  64 638 302  56 393 266
 Bad debts recovered  364 776 672 541
 Sundry income  2 922 079  1 872 052
 Fair value adjustment on currency swap  847 362  4 267 422

  68 772 519  63 205 281

 EXPENSES
 Advertising  397 852  359 884
 Audit remuneration  236 070  320 000
 Bank charges  349 457  436 174
 Bad debts written off  199 045  3 442 353
 Board expenses  169 233  113 691
 Computer expenses  16 268  31 225
 Consulting fees  364 400  277 838
 Depreciation  689 454  663 981
 Donations  87 000  341 740
 Facility fee charge  420 000  158 625
 Impairment of loans and advances  10 900 551  13 817 111
 Insurance  249 570  253 535
 Interest expense  20 178 260  15 241 003
 Legal fees  109 526  190 817
 Loss on foreign exchange  2 217 602  2 267 734
 Magazines and subscriptions  567 849  760 051
 Motor vehicle expenses  775 983  541 178
 Printing and stationery  129 218  213 163
 Professional fees  140 903  116 101
 Repairs and maintenance  20 929  41 704
 Rent, water and light  766 293  698 474
 Salaries and wages  12 674 430  11 366 568
 Security  175 112  90 471
 Sundry expenses  97 930  263 004
 Telephone and postage  625 374  526 993
 Travelling and entertainment & International conferences  1 305 526  512 022
 Loss on sale of fixed assets  168 416  -

 Total expense 54 032 251 53 045 440

 Profit before income tax expense  14 740 268  10 159 841
 Income tax expens (4 997 029) (2 503 470) 
 Profit for the year  9 743 239 7 656 371

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT  
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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    2009

 Profit before tax  14 740 269

 Temporary differences

 Add back:  Provision for leave pay 2009  303 798

  Provision for gratuity and performance bonus 2009  746 203

  Interest on leases  242 535

  Depreciation on leases  353 662

  Donations  87 000

  Foreign exchanges losses  2 217 602

 

 Deduct:  Provision for leave pay 2008  (195 379)

  Provision for gratuity and performance bonus 2008  (110 111)

  Lease payments  (1 019 910)

  Fair value gains on currency swaps  (847 362)

 Taxable income  16 518 307

 Taxation at 30%  4 955 492

TAXATION SCHEDULE  
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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PORTFOLIO GRAPHS

Sectoral Distribution 31 March 2009
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Transport services
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100,000,000

50,000,000

-
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Gross Portfolio

Hhohho
Manzini

Lubombo
Shiselweni

Gross Portfolio

Net Portfolio

Impairment
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Net Portfolio
Impairment
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Manzini

Lubombo

Shiselweni



7th Floor Dhlanubeka Building
Corner Mdada & Lalufadlana Streets, Mbabane

PO Box 6099 Mbabane
Tel: +268-404 9272 / 404-9436/7 / 404-7801  Fax: +268-404-9273

e-mail: sdfc@fincorp.co.sz
www.fincorp.co.sz


